——

ity ol '
ASTILAND g

Missouri * a]%:
e E_‘r;ﬁ-
Febi i Fiiens

City of Ashland, Missouri
Meeting Agenda
Board of Aldermen
April 06, 2021

WORK SESSION AT 6:00 p.m. via zoom on Ashland Missouri Land Development Regulations Assessment-
Review Draft at the following link:

https.//us02web.zoom.us/j/81529153286?pwd=KzM4VIITdk51SIICdSswYmtocWpBUT09

REGULAR MEETING AT 7:00 PM. WILL BE CONDUCTED VIA ZOOM ONLY AT THE
FOLLOWING LINK:

https://usO2web.zoom.us/j/815291532862pwd=KzM4VIITdk51SIICdSswYmtocWpBUT09

VL.

INTRODUCTORY ITEMS

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Approval of Previous Minutes- March 11, 2021 special meeting & March 16, 2021 regular
meeting

Adjustment and approval of the Agenda

SPECIAL ITEMS

a. None

APPOINTMENTS TO BOARD AND COMMISSION

a. Marcy Wood-re-appointment to the Parks & Recreation Board
b.  Amy Banning-re-appointment to the Parks & Recreation Board
¢. Marsha Lessley-re-appointment to the Parks & Recreation Board

SCHEDULED PUBLIC COMMENT

None (Written request must be received by the City Clerk by Wednesday before the meeting
date) Speakers cannot comment on items on the agenda, Time will be permitted following the
reading of each agenda item under Old and New Business for public comment.

PUBLIC HEARING
a. 2021-2022 Budget & Capital Improvement Plan

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING
a. Council Bill No. 2021-016, adopting the fiscal year 2022 Capital Improvement Plan for
the City of Ashland



VIL.

VIIL.

X.
Xl

b. Council Bill No. 2021-017, an ordinance adopting an annual Budget for the fiscal year
beginning May 1, 2021 and appropriating funds pursuant thereto

¢. Council Bill No. 2021-018, an ordinance amending Chapter 14, Sewer, Water & Solid
Waste

d. Council Bill No. 2021-019, an ordinance authorizing the City of Ashland, Missouri to enter
into a lease purchase transaction for the purpose of financing the acquisition and
improvement of a building; an authorizing certain documents and actions in connection
therewith

OLD BUSINESS

a. Ordinance No. 1340, an ordinance approving the final plat for Smith & Lane Subdivision

NEW BUSINESS

a. A resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Community Pool Agreement with the
Ashland Optimist Club

b. A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement with McConnell &
Associates for the Ashland Community Park Tennis Court repair project

c. Consideration of a leak adjustment

REPORTS

a. Mayor’s report

b. City Administrator’s report

¢. City Attorney’s report

d. Police Chief’s monthly report

e. Board of Aldermen report

GENERAL COMMENTS BY PUBLIC, ALDERMEN AND STAFF
ADJOURNMENT

Members of the public may attend any open meeting, For requests for accommodations related to disability, Please
call 573-657-2091 or email cityclerk@ashlandmo,us

In order to assist staff in making the appropriate arrangements for your accommodation, please make sure your
request as far in advance of the posted meeting date as possible.

Posted: 4-02-2021@ \[) 2> "



THURSDAY, MARCH 11, 2021
SPECIAL BOARD OF ALDERMEN MINUTES
7:00 P.M.

DRAFT COPY NOT APPROVED BY BOARD

Mayor Sullivan called the special meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. on March 11, 2021 via zoom.

Mayor Sullivan called the roll:
Ward One: Nathan Volkart-here, Bryan Bradford-here
Ward Two: Melissa Old-here, Stephanie Bell-here
Ward Three:  Rick Lewis-here, Jeff Sapp-here

Staff Present: Darla Sapp, City Clerk, Jeff Kays, City Attorney, Lelande Rehard, Assistant City
Administrator and Tony St. Romaine, City Administrator.

Guests Present: Chris Sanders, McClure Engineering, Alliance Water Resources, Derek McCubbin, Todd
Kempker, James Creel, Kyle Landwehr, Bartlett and West, JP Doran with Alliance Water Resources,
Elisabeth Sobczak and Bill Martin

Mayor Sullivan reported he had another meeting to participate in at 7:15 p.m. tonight and would turn the
meeting over to Mayor Pro-tem Sapp.

Tony St. Romaine, City Administrator thanked the Board for having the special meeting to talk about a
proposed regional sewer lift station to serve multiple developments. He gave an overview of the
preliminary plat for Liberty Landing North for a 250 residential homes and a preliminary plat approved for
Ashland Commons. He stated the current lift station in Liberty Landing would be overloaded if they
connected it to the new development Liberty Landing North. He stated there has been discussion of
upsizing the Liberty Landing Subdivision to accommodate the potential developments in this southwest
quadrant. He stated it could also serve the Salinda Lane pump station and West Oaks/Justin Lane pump
station as well. He stated these are at capacity. He stated he had a meeting this morning with another
developer for north of Palomino with a potential of 100 units going in there. Tony St. Romaine stated Chris
Sanders from McClure Engineering presented a proposal on how the cost might be distributed. Tony St.
Romaine stated Bartlett & West has been contracted by the City to do an inflow & infiltration study of our
sewer system. He turned the meeting over to Chris Sanders.

Chris Sandets, McClure Engineering presented an overall map of the southwest part of town and potential
development. He reported Martin Builders has developed Liberty Landing Subdivision and the next piece
of property is north of the existing development. He stated their lift station was built to serve the lots
proposed at the time. He stated they initially talked about installing another lift station to serve Liberty
Landing North. He stated they have submitted the preliminary plat for Liberty Landing North and it came
to conclusion it is not in the best interest to have so many lift stations. He stated they require regular
maintenance. He stated the southwest part of Ashland seems to have drive for more development. He
stated this area has a natural water shed. He explained the areas the Regional Sewer Lift Station could
serve, He stated that all the potential people have not been contacted. He stated we could eliminate the
Salinda Drive lift station and increase the capacity of Justin/West Oaks lift station. He stated at full
development the required pumping capacity of the Southwest lift station will be 1300 to 1400 gallons per
minute. The flow from the existing connections and the antipicated flow from the future development is on
Table 1. Chris Sanders stated with the construction of Liberty Lane from Henry Clay Blvd to Middleton
Drive in 2006 a 8” force main was installed for future sewer use to serve a regional lift station. He stated
with the treatment plant project a 24 inch gravity pipe was installed up to Liberty Lane near the intersection

1



with Middleton Drive. He proposed to replace the existing Liberty Landing lift station to significantly
increase capacity. Using the existing lift station site will minimize site cost and electric service
improvements. He stated a new force main would be installed in existing easements north to Liberty Lane
construction a backup generator will be included to automatically provide an emergency source. Chris
Sanders gave an overview of the construction cost budget that is included in Table 2. He stated they
recommend that the total cost be divided by the pumping capacity of the station, establishing a share cost
for the various properties that will benefit from the facility. He stated the landowners could be approached
to participate in the project at the time of construction at the proposed share cost. He stated as an incentive
to landowners to participate now, reducing the upfront expenditure by the city, a reasonable carry cost
should be added on a yearly basis to reimburse the city in the future. He stated eliminating the existing lift
stations and multiple future stations would provide substantial operational savings over time. He informed
the Board it would minimize the possibility of emergency overflows and environmental impacts. Mr.
Sanders reported Mr. Martin has his preliminary plat submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission
and we they are ready to move on with this first phase. He stated these budget estimates are based on private
development cost and not a full Department of Natural Resources funding process. He stated this creates a
lot of delay and escalates the cost a lot.

Tony 5t. Romaine, City Administrator expanded on the budget estimates. The budget estimate for 1480
gallons per minute is $870,000 and 1180 gallons per minute is $710,000. He stated we will need to work
the financial aspects out. He stated the developer cost share is proposed at $252,840 with the city carrying
cost of $619,164. He stated they have not contacted other property owners to see what interest they would
have. He stated we would take out the Salinda Drive lift station. He stated the big issue is funding. Chris
Sanders, McClure Engineering stated the State Revolving funding through Department of Natural
Resources is a complex process. He stated he just wanted to make everyone aware of the options of a
regional lift station and get a general concept of what is being presented tonight.

Mayor Pro-tem Sapp stated it would be expensive now but in the long run it would increase future use and
capacity as well.

Alderman Volkart asked what a realistic time frame is. He stated it appears Mr. Martin is ready to turn dirt
any day and he obviously needs to know what lift station options there are. Tony St. Romaine stated the
plan is to be building homes within a year. He stated the other point is the time frame it takes to get State
Revolving Fund, additional cost of prevailing wage, bond approval by the voters, etc. He stated the funding
would still need to be worked out. Tony St. Romaine stated we want to make sure the developers pay their
way and don’t pass the cost down to the existing tax payers. Tony St. Romaine stated he is working with
the Treasurer on options. He stated they would work on the financing options and present back to the
Board.

Mayor Pro-tem Sapp stated we should pursue speaking with other landowners and try to finance in house
without the State Revolving Fund in order to expedite the project and save in interest fees.

Alderman Volkart stated it is necessary to start engaging with the landowners so this is not at the expense
of the existing citizens.

Mayor Pro-tem Sapp stated the sewer utility fund would have to fund this or money borrowed from the
general revenue fund.

James Creel, Public Works Director stated the future growth of the city we could have numerous lift stations
to maintain if we don’t do a regional lift station. He stated we need to focus on the ease of operation and
decrease of maintenance cost. He stated we are seeing growth from all quadrants.



Alderwoman Old questioned if we do go down this road with the regional sewer lift station would it be
built for future capacity.

Mayor Pro-tem Sapp stated it was better to go with larger regional system. He stated that Tony St. Romaine
and Jon Sanders will go through the numbers on financing and the main reason for the meeting was to gage
if the Board was interested in pursuing the regional sewer lift station. He stated we need to move on this
s0 we do not hold up the Liberty Landing North development schedule.

Chris Sanders stated the sewer to get to Liberty Landing North is owned by the Bullard’s and is currently
undeveloped. He stated the cost to close out of Salinda Lift Station and the interconnect is not included in
the financial analyst,

Alderman Lewis questioned where the proposed site would be. Chris Sanders stated it would be west side
of the Liberty development,

Bill Martin, Developer stated time is of the essence. He stated we need to move forward because he does
have the option to build his own pump station. He stated if a regional sewer lift station is a possibility he
would like to help but he needs to move forward. Mayor Pro-tem Sapp stated our Treasurer is looking at
finance options and he hopes to have this expedited.

Mayor Pro-tem Sapp called for Public comments.

Mayor Sullivan was back in attendance at the meeting,

Tony St. Romaine, City Administrator stated after the discussion tonight it appears the Board is in favor
in eliminating lift stations and pursuing a regional lift station. He stated we will need to look at the cost
and financing options to see if this is possible.

Mayor Pro-tem Sapp called for the adjournment. Alderman Lewis made motion and seconded by
Alderman Volkart to adjourn the meeting. Mayor Pro-tem Sapp called for the vote. Alderman Lewis-aye,
Alderman Volkart-aye, Alderwoman Old-aye, Alderwoman Bell-aye, Alderman Bradford-aye. Motion
carried.

Darla Sapp, City Clerk Richard Sullivan, Mayor
Jeff Sapp, Mayor Pro-Tem



MARCH 16, 2021
BOARD OF ALDERMEN MINUTES
7:00 P.M,
DRAFT MINUTES NOT APPROVED BY THE BOARD

Mayor Sullivan called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. on March 16, 2021 via zoom.
Alderman Bradford gave the invocation.
Mayor Sullivan led in the pledge of allegiance.

Mayor Sullivan called the roll:
Ward One: Nathan Volkart-here, Bryan Bradford-here
Ward Two: Melissa Old-here, Stephanie Bell-here
Ward Three:  Rick Lewis-here, Jeff Sapp-here

Staff Present: Darla Sapp, City Clerk, Jeff Kays, City Attorney, Dan Vande Voorde, Building Inspector,
Lelande Rehard, Assistant City Administrator, James Creel, Public Works Director and Tony St. Romaine,
City Administrator.

Mayor Sullivan presented the minutes of the March 02, 2021 Board meeting for consideration. Alderman
Sapp made motion and seconded by Alderman Lewis to approve the minutes as presented. Mayor Sullivan
called for the vote. Motion carried.

Mayor Sullivan presented the agenda for adjustments. Being none, he called for the motion to approve the
agenda. Alderman Sapp made motion and seconded by Alderman Bradford to approve the agenda as
presented. Mayor Sullivan called for the vote. Motion carried.

Mayor Sullivan reported there are no scheduled comments. He reminded everyone that if you wish to have
a scheduled comment it needs to be in writing to the City Clerk on the Wednesday prior to the Board
meeting. He stated zoom is the primary way of communication for this meeting. He stated this is on face-
book but it is not part of the official meeting. He stated there is opportunity for the public to speak on items
on the agenda.

Mayor Sullivan presented Jamie Davis to serve on the Parks & Recreation Board. Alderwoman Old made
motion and seconded by Alderman Lewis to appoint Jamie Davis to the Parks and Recreation Board. Mayor
Sullivan called for the vote. Alderman Sapp-aye, Alderman Bradford-aye, Alderwoman Old-aye,
Alderwoman Bell-aye, Alderman Volkart-aye, Alderman Lewis-aye. Motion carried.

Mayor Sullivan presented Anthony Vaughn to serve on the Parks and Recreation Board. Alderwoman Old
made motion and seconded by Alderman Lewis to appoint Anthony Vaughn to the Parks & Recreation
Board. Mayor Sullivan stated that Anthony Vaughn was on the zoom meeting tonight. Anthony Vaughn
thanked everyone for making his appointment happen and he is looking forward to giving back to the
community. Mayor Sullivan called for the vote. Alderman Lewis-aye, Alderman Volkart-aye, Alderwoman
Bell-aye, Alderwoman Old-aye, Alderman Bradford-aye, Alderman Sapp-aye. Motion carried.

Mayor Sullivan thanked Lelande Rehard, Assistant City Administrator and Alderwoman Old for helping
interview the candidates. He stated they had five applicants and narrowed it down to two. He informed the
Board he received another application this week. He stated he is excited we have interest from the
community to serve. He stated the Parks & Recreation Board is full at this time.



Mayor Sullivan presented Council Bill No. 2021-015 an ordinance approving the final plat for Smith &
Lane Subdivision for consideration. Alderman Sapp made motion and seconded by Alderman Volkart to
take up for consideration Council Bill No. 2021-015, an ordinance approving the final plat for Smith &
Lane Subdivision for consideration. Mayor Sullivan called for the staff report. Tony St. Romaine stated he
did not attend the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting but the Planning and Zoning reviewed the
request and recommended its approval. Mayor Sullivan called for comments from the Public. Mayor
Sullivan called for questions or comments from the Board. Alderman Sapp reported at the Planning and
Zoning Commission meeting they had concerns on the access to Lot 2 off of Hickam Alley. He stated it
should not be a problem since they will come off Hickam Alley. He stated the Planning and Zoning
Commission approved this. Mayor Sullivan called for the vote. Alderman Lewis-aye, Alderman Volkart-
aye, Alderwoman Bell-aye, Alderwoman Old-aye, Alderman Bradford-aye, Alderman Sapp-aye. Motion
carried.

Mayor Sullivan presented Ordinance No. 1337, an ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a
supplemental agreement with Bartlett & West, Inc. for professional services for the Broadway/Henry Clay
roundabout. Alderman Sapp made motion and seconded by Alderman Lewis to take up for consideration
Ordinance No. 1337, an ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a supplemental agreement with
Bartlett & West, Inc. for professional services for the Broadway/Henry Clay roundabout. Mayor Sullivan
called for the staff report. Tony St. Romaine, City Administrator stated this is the second reading and it is
a supplemental engineering agreement for additional expenses for the North Henry Clay and Broadway
roundabout project. He stated the original bid amount did not include the additional alternate layout options
and extra meetings. Mayor Sullivan called for comments from the public. Mayor Sullivan called for
questions or comments from the Board. Alderman Lewis commented that we do have to pay them for the
work they have done but he is disappointed that they did not move the location further to the River Region
lot since that is a mobile building they plan on moving anyway. Mayor Sullivan called for the vote.
Alderman Sapp-aye, Alderman Bradford-aye, Alderwoman Old-aye, Alderwoman Bell-aye, Alderman
Volkart-aye, Alderman Lewis-aye. Motion carried.

Mayor Sullivan presented Ordinance No. 1338, an ordinance to amend Chapter 10, Planning, Zoning,
Subdivisions, Building of the City of Ashland Code. Alderman Sapp made motion and seconded by
Alderwoman Old to take up for consideration, Ordinance No. 1338, an ordinance to amend Chapter 10,
Planning, Zoning, Subdivisions, Building of the City of Ashland Code. Mayor Sullivan called for the staff
report. Tony St. Romaine, City Administrator stated this is the second reading and contains changes to
Chapter 10 since we took over the building inspections on January 1. We took over the application for
building permits from the county and the advertising period of 90 days was required before the changes
could take effect. He stated there was also changes to administrative fees and the way the permits are
calculated, He stated Dan Vandevoorde, Building Inspector is the one that reviewed this and made the
necessary changes. Dan Vandevoorde, Building Inspector explained the ICC codes are the same as the
counties but converted to City of Ashland. He stated there is a fee schedule and all permits have a $50 fee.
He stated the building permit fee is a straight multiplier instead of square footage as the county charged.
He explained the review fee and re-inspection fee and erosion violations. Mayor Sullivan called for
comments from the public. Mayor Sullivan called for questions or comments from the Board. Alderman
Volkart questioned the fence permit fee and enforcement for people not getting a permit. Dan Vandevoorde
stated there is no permit fee for fence permit but an administrative fee of $50.00 to help recoup of the costs
of inspections. He stated if you do not get a permit it doubles the fee. Alderman Lewis questioned the one
page that had a misprint of 2020 on it. The City Clerk reported that was a letter that was sent in December
of the changes and just copied for the packet. Mayor Sullivan called for the vote. Alderman Lewis-aye,
Alderman Volkart-aye, Alderwoman Bell-aye, Alderwoman Old-aye, Alderman Bradford-aye, Alderman
Sapp-aye. Motion carried.



Mayor Sullivan presented Ordinance No. 1339, an ordinance to amend Chapter 6, Chapter 9, Chapter 10,
and Chapter 25 of the Codes of the City of Ashland. Mayor Sullivan called for the staff report. Lelande
Rehard, Assistant City Administrator reported this is for clarification when the elections of the Board or
Commissions are voted on. He stated we have revised it to be the first regular meeting of board or
commission in May. Mayor Sullivan reported we have been losing people on these Boards and there is not
any language when the elections was to happen. He stated they wanted to make it the same each year.
Alderman Sapp made motion and seconded by Alderman Volkart to take up for consideration Ordinance
No. 1339, an ordinance to amend Chapter 6, Chapter 9, Chapter 10, and Chapter 25 of the Codes of the
City of Ashland. Mayor Sullivan called for comments from the public. Mayor Sullivan called for comments
or questions from the Board. Mayor Sullivan called for the vote, Alderman Lewis-aye, Alderman Volkart-
aye, Alderwoman Bell-aye, Alderwoman Old-aye, Alderman Bradford-aye, Alderman Sapp-aye. Motion
carried.

Mayor Sullivan presented a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a lawn waste disposal contract
with Clean Cut Services, LLC. Alderman Lewis made motion and seconded by Alderwoman Old to take
up a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a lawn waste disposal contract with Clean Cut Services,
LLC. Mayor Sullivan called for the staff report. Tony St. Romaine, City Administrator reported at the last
meeting some concerns were expressed about signage and gates not being open. Lelande Rehard, Assistant
City Administrator stated he met with Mr. Jones at the site and they discussed signage improvements,
updating our website on lawn waste disposal requirements to educate the citizens and adding contact
numbers. He stated yard waste is banned from the landfills. He gave an overview of how the City of
Columbia’s lawn waste center works. Richard Jones, owner of Clean Cut Services stated the main thing is
to get better knowledge to what is allowed. Mayor Sullivan called for comments from the public. Mayor
Sullivan called for comments or questions from the Board. Alderman Sapp reported he brought up about
the gate being closed during normal business hours, being treated rudely and he has issues with the contract.
He stated residents that help out an elderly neighbor is not be allowed to use this service even though we
live in the City of Ashland. Lelande Rehard stated there is a fee on every residential utility bill to help
cover for this service. Mayor Sullivan questioned the issues Mr. Jones was seeing at the site. Mr. Jones
explained commercial lawn mowing companies, root balls, and limbs not cut to proper length and illegal
dumping of lumber, etc. Mayor Sullivan stated for clarification purposes we are going to add phone numbers
at the site, moving some signage, getting city logo on the site and updating the website with pictures and
what is allowed to educate citizens. Mayor Sullivan called for the vote. Alderwoman Old-aye,
Alderwoman Bell-aye, Alderman Volkart-aye, Alderman Sapp-nay, Alderman Bradford- aye, Alderman
Lewis-aye. Motion carried.

Mayor Sullivan presented a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Community Pool Agreement
with the Ashland Optimist Club. Alderman Bradford made motion and seconded by Alderman Volkart to
take up for consideration a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Community Pool Agreement
with the Ashland Optimist Club. Mayor Sullivan gave an overview of the Optimist Pool and the past history
of the agreement with the City for a not to exceed $3,000.00 per year if there is a loss. He stated this year
the Parks & Recreation Board and the City gave them $12,531.00. He stated that was a special request due
to covid. He stated the Optimist Club presented a proposed agreement for the Board consideration which
is in the packet and is for $15,000.00 per year for five years and free city utilities. He stated the Optimist
Club wants out of the pool business. He stated we are working towards the future of the pool, upgrades
needed and longevity of the existing pool. Mayor Sullivan asked Barrett Glascock if he had any comments
he would like to make on behalf of the Optimist Club. Barrett Glascock gave an over of the how the pool
originated. He stated the city was not in a financial position to fund and maintain the pool. He stated the
future of the pool is going to have to be some kind of partnership to keep it. He stated he felt it is an asset
to the community. He stated if it is not a public pool it would revert back to the school system. Mayor
Sullivan opened the floor to public comment. Dorise Slinker stated he appreciates the pool and his children
use it every summer. Mayor Sullivan called for questions or comments from the Board. Alderman Sapp

3



stated he felt the pool is a great benefit for Ashland and he appreciated the history Barrett Glascock
provided. He stated the contract itself states $3,000 if there is a deficit and he felt we were in breach of
contract because we paid them more than what the contract stated for the last pool season. He stated the
proposal in the proposed contract states $15,000 dollars for five years and asking the City to not bill them
for city utilities. He was against a blanket amount with no restrictions for cost or loss or profit. Alderman
Volkart thanked the Optimist for supporting the pool. He felt the dollar figure was premature to the amount
right now because we are unsure of the life expectancy of the pool. He felt the existing pool is on borrowed
time. Barrett Glascock stated the Optimist is going forward with opening the pool this summer. He stated
there are some mechanical issues that have to be fixed prior that. Alderman Sapp stated the pool is outdated
and needs a lot of repairs. He stated he is not opposed to the dollar amount he is just not in favor of how
the contract is written. Alderwoman Bell stated it was very interesting to hear from Barrett Glascock. She
stated she has lived here for three years and they use the pool. She felt more research needed to be done
from other city operated pools to see how it is structured. She suggested tabling this. Barrett Glascock
stated the dollar amount came from the improvements needed to the equipment at the pool, pumps and
filters. The Board discussed the life span of the existing pool. Mayor Sullivan questioned how the transfer
of the pool to the City would work. They discussed Parks and Recreation taking over the pool in other
communities, Alderwoman Old stated she is favor of some kind of help or partnership and she agrees to not
charge for the utilities. She stated possibly paying for some of maintenance and paying a specific portion
of that see what the feasibility is of that. Alderman Lewis stated he agreed what everyone said and felt the
contract needs some work. He stated he felt forming another committee and looking at the transfer from
Optimist to the City would help. He stated we can look at what the immediate needs are and work on a
long range plan. He stated he is not in favor of the flat dollar fee and not knowing where that is going.
Alderman Bradford stated the $15,000 is a fraction of what it would take to cover the repairs. He stated he
did not know why we are worried because we hand money to everyone else. Alderman Volkart stated the
$15,000 a year could go towards a new pool. He stated some of the towns mentioned tonight have a different
tax base than we do. He stated we need to look at all options of updating the existing or a new pool. Mayor
Sullivan stated we could go ahead and vote on the resolution or a motion to table this to allow for more
research and allow Lelande Rehard to work with the Optimist Club on a short term agreement.  Alderman
Lewis made motion and seconded by Alderwoman Bell to table this resolution. Mayor Sullivan called for
the vote. Alderman Bradford-opposed. Motion carried.

Mayor Sullivan stated Lelande Rehard, Assistant City Administrator would take the lead to work with the
Optimist Club and Mr. Glascock to get some of these details lined out and present back to the Board of
Aldermen. He stated the current contract reflects up to $3,000.00 to help offset the loss of the pool.
Alderwoman Bell stated the Optimist provides a community service and we need to explore other
community partnerships.

Mayor’s Report:

Mayor Sullivan stated once the election is over Alderman Sapp has expressed his desire to submit an
application for the Planning and Zoning Commission. Mayor Sullivan gave an update on the Boone County
Health Order. He stated the mask mandate is through the county and is enforced by the Boone County
Health Department,

Mayor Sullivan gave an update on the Richard the Rabbit Easter Event. He stated he had a huge sponsor
and sub-sponsors. He asked for volunteer help to drive, hand out eggs and shadow him. He stated they
have to meet health order guidelines and is waiting on the final approval.

Mayor Sullivan congratulated Alderwoman Bell on her new position as co-host on a morning talk show
“Wake up Columbia™.

City Administrator’s Report:



Tony St. Romaine, City Administrator gave a brief update on the new City Hall/Police Department
financing. He stated we are working with D.A. Davidson and they have issued a formal request on the cities
behalf accepting proposals until March 22, 2021. He stated once that comes back we will be able to see
what the interest rate will be. He stated they would evaluate those and have a recommendation at the first
meeting in April and potentially close by the 13" of April. He stated he has advised Mr. McKinney. He
stated they are continuing to work with the Architect, He stated the goal is to try to get bids out by the end
of April. He stated the process would take 3 to 4 weeks. He stated construction could start late May or
early June and hopefully move in by the end of the year. Tony St. Romaine reported a Recovery Act Bill
and it looks like Ashland would receive a payment of $700,000.00. He discussed sewer infrastructure needs
with a cost estimate of $600,000.00 to participate in the regional lift station. He stated they had to turn down
a development north of Palomino Ridge due to sewer capacity. He stated Bartlett & West is doing Inflow
& Infiltration study of the sewer system and we are doing mapping of sewer infrastructure and studying the
sewer capacity of the lift stations. He stated the Parks and Recreation Board has a lot of projects that need
to move forward, tennis court, restrooms, upgrade to the ballfield and Lakeview Park improvements. Tony
St. Romaine gave an update on a program presented by Ameren called “Next Site” for commercial
development to a community. He explained how this program would work.

City Attorney’s Report:
Jeff Kays, City Attorney no report

Public Works monthly Report:

James Creel, Public Works Director gave an update on Billy Joes Sapp stormwater project. He stated the
residents have agreed to allow for easements. He gave an update on the park improvements. He stated the
lights for the recycling lot have been ordered. James Creel reported they have been cold patching the
potholes in the streets. He stated he met with Lelande Rehard and Tony St, Roamine in Setter’s Knoll on
the street issue. He stated he reached out to Engineering Survey’s & Services and they feel it is a base
failure and there is a sewer line 30 foot down that could be causing a compaction issue and causing the low
spot in the street. He stated he is waiting for them to get back with him on options and potential cost.

Board of Aldermen’s Reports:
Alderman Bradford reported a chili cook off for March 25 with Helping Hands,

Alderman Sapp congratulated Alderwoman Bell on her position with a morning talk show. He stated last
week him and Alderman Bradford and Dorise Slinker met at Liberty Landing Subdivision and there was
lack of erosion control there. He stated two were almost completed and in his opinion numerous lots without
erosion control. Alderman Sapp stated he attended the benefit for Wyatt Sanders last weekend the
Hooligan’s put on. He thanked everyone for showing up at the event.

Alderman Lewis updated the Board on his upcoming surgery on March 30.

Alderwoman Bell stated she appreciated everyone’s support and shout out’s on her being a co-host on a
radio talk show. Alderwoman Bell stated she is glad the community is coming together and seeing cool
things happen and it is exciting time.

Alderwoman Old stated she is impressed with people volunteering and that wants to be on the park board.
Mayor Sullivan called for additional comments by the public or staff comments.

Mike Frese stated he hears that a lot of people would like to have tennis court, new pool and streets and

sidewalks. He stated we should educate ourselves on the Wayfair Act. He encouraged the citizens and
Board to be supportive,



Barrett Glascock stated he has been in the community his entire life and he is impressed the Board of
Aldermen has evolved and the direction you are going. He encouraged them to keep up the good work.

Elisabeth Sobczak of 807 Westwind Court stated the excitement the Mayor & Board are sharing comes
with some constraints and challenges.

Mayor Sullivan called for adjournment.

Alderman Sapp made motion and seconded by Alderman Bradford to adjourn the meeting. Mayor Sullivan
called for the vote. Motion carried.

Darla Sapp, City Clerk Richard Sullivan, Mayor



C11Y UF ASHLAND, MISSOUKI
BOARD MEMBER APPLICATION

ASiiLanD £

Wisscuri

Name: _ Marey 1aJood
Telephone Number: Daytime: 573/ 673 -% 143 Evening: _ 573 72- %143
Home Address: 5 (| EC\%\ e loke T
Bewleand, MO Lbolo
Email: __ vrandcortmem @ ua\’wo com
Year Current Residence in Ashland Began. 9 ’ 200 (o
Check Which Board(s) You Are Interested In: Re-Appointment

O Board of Adjustment
@ Park and Recreation Board
[ Planning and Zoning Commission

Special Qualifications for Specific Board(s): (Include past board services)
- Foll Cesy C,rm::('c\._‘ 2003
- LerkifBea Proyeck vieenag e LPW\I ‘PN\P)

Education Background:
- N\{%A aﬂ\www\aim Qol)aﬂe._ ‘-L“"'\"/ 2012

Community Involvement:

- Lufrent park 4 fec beoara

Are you related to Any Employee or Official of the City of Ashland? YES  NO X

If Yes, Name of Person: Nnla Relationship: nja

Signed: (/4/ //K/M Date: t;?j'/;?_!?/;ap;/

Flmmed e e b s Tl e mima femues Al o dozs th ooy cwe 2lemwiaa d Mot 2 b el ad i 1 1201




CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI
BOARD MEMBER APPLICATION

City af
ASHLAND

Missouri

Name: Amy Banning

Telephone Number: Daytime: 573-881-2551 Evening: Same
Home Address: _ 301 Jameson Drive, Ashland, MO

Email: amyb093 @yahoo.com

Year Current Residence in Ashland Began: 2001

Check Which Board(s) You Are Interested In:  Re-Appointment [x

O Board of Adjustment
O Park and Recreation Board
[ Planning and Zoning Commission

Special Qualifications for Specific Board(s): (Include past board services)

| began on the Park Board in March 2020 and would like to continue my

service.

Education Background:

| have a bachelors degree in social work from Columbia College.

Community Involvement:

| served as a Girl Scout Troop Leader for four years.

Are you related to Any Employee or Official of the City of Ashland? YES  NO X

If Yes, Name of Person: Relationship:

Signed:ﬁ%béﬂ_w{%




CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI
BOARD MEMBER APPLICATION

\Girar
ﬁ“_:‘.' Jl._j 1 g W “I.! ) o
Missouri + -~

by

Name: ' \/ "fr v\

Telephone Number: Daytime: Evening: . Y
Home Address: { oy )\ i . LES
Email: -\ \2Li R

Year Current Residence in Ashland Began: \ |

Check Which Board(s) You Are Interested In: Re-Appointment X

OO0 Board of Adjustment
I Park and Recreation Board
- O Planning and Zoning Commission

Special Qualifications for Specific Board(s): (Include past board services)

. | —+] - ! | [ " =
LT X LE ey Ll I N S S S

Education Background:

v )
\v VUV
A

Community Involvement:

1 i
AL { ‘n“‘-\‘. ) Y {4

£ | [ / L \q

Are you related to Any Employee or Official of the City of Ashland? YES__ NOX

If Yes, Name of Person: Relationship:

Signed: A e , o Mol e Date:

- ) |.
Board member applications are valid for one year from the date they are signed. Return to Ashland City Hall.
Moadified: 03-25-2021



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2021-016 ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR
THE CITY OF ASHLAND

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSQURI AS
FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS, the City Staff have prepared the FY2021 Capital Improvement Plan.

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen has reviewed the Capital Improvement Plan and hereby recommends
the adoption of this program.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The adoption of the FY2021 Capital Improvement Plan as “Exhibit A”.

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon the final passage and approval.

Richard Sullivan, Mayor

Attest:

Darla Sapp, City Clerk

Certified as to correct form:

Jeffrey Kays, City Attorney



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2021-017 ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AN ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING
MAY 1, 2021 AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS PURSUANT THERETO

WHEREAS, the City Administrator and City Staff has presented the Board of Aldermen with an annual
budget for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen has reviewed and agree with the recommendations for the annual
budget for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2021.

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ASHLAND,
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The annual budget for the City of Ashland, Missouri, for the fiscal year beginning May 1,
2021 and ending April 30, 2022; A copy of which is attached and marked as “Exhibit A” hereto and made
a part hereof as if fully set forth herein, is hereby adopted.

Section 2. Funds are hereby appropriated for the objects and purposes of expenditures set forth in said
budget.

Section 3. Instructs the City Treasurer to distribute said budget to all entities that have interest in the
financial matter of the City.

Section 4. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage by the Board of
Aldermen.

Passed this day of ,2021.

Richard Sullivan, Mayor

Attest;

Darla Sapp, City Clerk

Certified as to correct form:

Jeffrey Kays, City Attorney



AL AND 3 u City of Ashland

109 East Broadway, Ashland, Missouri 65010

Department Source: City Administrator
To: Board of Alderpersons

From: Lelande Rehard

Board Meeting Date: April, 6" 2021

Re: Water Meters and Lawn Irrigation

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Staff has reviewed and updated the Utility Billing Manual, The City’s current policy for the
installation of water meters for lawn irrigation systems that are installed following the construction of a building
need to by adopted by ordinance.

DISCUSSION: During the review of the Utility Billing Manual staff determined that Chapter 14 needs to be amended
by ordinance to reflect the City’s policy for lawn irrigation lawn meters. The policy was approved by resolution by
the Board of Alderman in 2018 but needs to be adopted by ordinance. The current policy states the water meters
cost 5600 for irrigation systems and will be installed by City staff during home construction. Residents that install
irrigation systems after construction can still purchase a separate water meter for 5600 but must arrange for the
irrigation installation company or other contractor to install the meter.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Short Term Impact (cost proposed legislation the next 5 years): N/A

Long Term Impact: S0

SUGGESTED BOARD ACTION: Staff recommends adopting the City’s current policy by ordinance.




fissomri F (i 'T'\r‘ ~4

’ 109 East Broadway, Ashland, Missouri 65010

Department Source: City Administrator
To: Board of Alderpersons

From: Lelande Rehard

Board Meeting Date: April, 6" 2021

Re: Final Notice for Billing

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Staff has reviewed and updated the Utility Billing Manual and would like to amend Chapter
14 to make the terms for billing notices more transparent and clearer for the public.

DISCUSSION: During the review of the Utility Billing Manual staff determined that Chapter 14 needs to be amended
by ordinance to change the name of the Disconnect Fee to Final Notice Charge. Staff has reported that many times
customers come in while Water Department staff are in the field disconnecting service and are confused about why
they need to pay a fee for water disconnection when they are still getting service. Staff would like to change the
name of the fee to Final Notice Charge to communicate the fee is dependent upon the date at which the bill is past
due, not the time at which the actual disconnection takes place.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Short Term Impact (cost proposed legislation the next 5 years): N/A

Long Term Impact: S0

SUGGESTED BOARD ACTION: Staff recommends adopting the City’s current amending Chapter 14 to
change Disconnect Fee to Final Notice Charge.




COUNCIL BILL NO. 2021-018 ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 14, SEWER, WATER & SOLID WASTE OF THE CODE
OF THE CITY OF ASHLAND

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI,
AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Chapter 14 of the Ashland City Code is hereby amended as follows:
Material to be deleted in steikesut: material to be added underlined.
14.205. Billing and collection procedures (Water)

A. Every water service charge specified in this section remaining unpaid after the 15" of the month
shall be increased by ten (10) percent. If charges have not been paid by the 25" of the month at
5:00 p.m. a netiee-of diseenneet final notice will be issued and an additional ten-dollar ($10.00)
charge shall be added to the water service charges remaining unpaid. If the 25" falls on a weekend
or City holiday, the charge is assessed on the next business day. All fees must be paid by 5:00 p.m.
on the date listed on the diseonneetnstice final notice or the customer’s water service will be
disconnected. Notwithstanding, the foregoing, in the event a commercial or public funded
customer service is providing services to individuals whose health may be compromised or
vulnerable due to a lack of water service, including, but not limited to skilled nursing care facilities,
assisted living facilities, hospice care facilities, and public schools, the City Utility Clerk shall
notify the City Administrator 24 hours in advance of water service being disconnected. The City
Administrator shall have discretion to extend the deadline for payment and disconnection after
communication with said customer and arrangements have been made to bring the account current.
Service will not be reconnected until all fees and a seventy-five dollars ($75.00) reconncetionfee
final notice charge have been paid. Reconnections will not be done outside of normal work hours
for City public works employees, unless deemed an emergency situation by the city water
superintendent. The fee for reconnections made outside of normal work hours shall be one hundred
fifty dollars ($150.00). (amended 6-16-15 Ordinance No. 1027) (amended 11-20-2018, Ordinance
No. 1223)

APPENDIX C-2: WATER RATES

These sections are set out in the Appendix of the Code and shall be considered a part thereof as if more
fully and completely set out within.

Fees :

Installation Fee. For installation of a water meter the fee in the amount of Six Hundred ($600.00) dollars
shall be paid to the City. The property owner shall be responsible for installing all service lines and making
the actual connection. The specifications for any such connection shall be as established by the City Public
Works Director,



Irrigation Meter:

The City of Ashland will be responsible for the installation of meters for lawn irrigation systems only if the
meter is purchased at the time of building permit issuance.

If a homeowner/buyer would like to install an additional meter after the permit is issued. the home is
purchased or after construction is completed, they are required to purchase the meter through the City of

Ashland. The installation and all responsibility will be at the discretion of the lawn irri
company. The City of Ashland will only be responsible for reading the meter and meter maintenance.

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after it passage by the Board of
Aldermen.

Passed this day of , 2021,

Richard Sullivan, Mayor
Attest:

Darla Sapp, City Clerk

Certified as to correct form:

Jeffrey Kays, City Attorney



A.....- P City of Ashland

SHLAND -
—> 109 East Broadway, Ashland, Missouri 65010

Department Source: City Administrator
To: Board of Alderpersons

From: Tony St Romaine

Board Meeting Date: April 6, 2021

Re: City Hall Financing

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Due to the length of time that the USDA is taking to approve a loan for the acquisition of
our new City Hall location, The Board approved an agreement with D.A. Davidson to secure financing through a
lease back arrangement.

DISCUSSION: Davidson conducted a formal RFP process and received several proposals. Staff is recommending an
agreement with Central Bank of Boone County (copy attached). The rate on the tax exempt portion of the property
will be 2.25% and 3.00% on the taxable portion over 20 years.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Short Term Impact (cost proposed legislation the next 2 years): See attached lease agreement.

Long Term Impact: S0

SUGGESTED BOARD ACTION: Approval of the Ordinance.




COUNCIL BILL NO. 2021-019 ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI TO ENTER INTO A
LEASE PURCHASE TRANSACTION FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING THE
ACQUISITION AND IMPROVEMENT OF A BUILDING; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN
DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH.

WHEREAS, the City of Ashland, Missouri (the “City™), desires to obtain money to pay for the
acquisition of an existing building located at 101 West Broadway, Ashland, MO 65010 (the “Building”) and
for improvements to and furnishings for the Building (the “Project Costs™); and

WHEREAS, in order to finance the Project Costs, it is necessary and desirable for the City to take
the following actions:

1. Enter into a Base Lease (the “Base Lease™), with Central Bank of Boone
County (the “Bank”), pursuant to which the City will lease certain real property (the “Site,”
consisting of the real property on which the Building is located) to the Bank; and

2. Enter into a Lease Purchase Agreement (the “Lease Purchase
Agreement”), with the Bank, pursuant to which the City will lease the Site and the
Building, as improved (together, the “Facilities™), from the Bank with an option to
purchase,

3. Enter into an Assignment and Assumption Agreement (the “Assignment”)
pursuant to which the City will assume the rights and obligations of the seller of the
Building, as landlord with respect to a lease of space within the building to The Callaway
Bank (the “Tenant™).

4, Enter into a Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement
(the “SNDA”) with the Bank and the Tenant setting out certain rights and priorities with
respect to their interests in the Building.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Approval of Documents. The documents listed above (collectively, the “City
Documents™) are hereby approved in substantially the forms on file with the City Clerk, with such changes
therein as are approved by the Mayor, the Mayor’s execution thereof to be conclusive evidence of the
approval thereof. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver and the City Clerk is
authorized to attest and seal such documents on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City.

SECTION 2. Further Authority. The City will, and the officials and agents of the City are hereby
authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other documents,
certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this
Ordinance and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the City
Documents.



SECTION 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance will take effect and be in full force on the day of its
passage by the Board of Aldermen.

PASSED by the Board of Aldermen, and APPROVED by the Mayor, of the City of Ashland,
Missouri this 20th day of April, 2021.

Mayor
[SEAL]

ATTEST:

City Clerk

Certified as to correct form:

Jeffrey Kays, City Attorney



(Space above reserved for Recorder’s use)

TITLE OF DOCUMENT: BASE LEASE

DATE OF DOCUMENT: April 30, 2021

GRANTOR(S) NAME AND CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI
MAILING ADDRESS: 109 East Broadway

Ashland, MO 65010
Attention: City Clerk

GRANTEE(S) NAME AND
MAILING ADDRESS:

CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY
P.O. Box 678

Columbia, MO 65205

Attn: Dawn Shellabarger

RETURN DOCUMENTS TO:

David S. Martin

Gilmore & Bell, P.C.

2405 Grand Boulevard, Suite 1100
Kansas City, Missouri 64108

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

See Schedule 1




BASE LEASE

BASE LESSOR: CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI, a fourth-class city and political subdivision
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri.

BASE LESSEE: CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY, a state banking corporation formed
under the laws of the State of Missouri.

DATE: April 30,2021

THIS BASE LEASE (the “Base Lease™), dated as of the date set forth above, by and between the
Base Lessor named above (together with its successors and assigns, “Base Lessor” or “City”), and the Base
Lessee named above (together with its successors and assigns, “Base Lessee” or “Bank”),

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, in order to carry out the governmental and proprietary functions of the City, the
governing body of the City deems it necessary to acquire the hereinafter defined Site and complete the
hereinafter defined Improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City is, on this date, acquiring the real estate described in Schedule 1, including
any improvements now or hereafter located thereon (the “Site™), on which it desires to locate the
[mprovements; and

WHEREAS, the Bank proposes to (i) lease the Site from the City, (ii) pay rentals (“Base Lease
Rentals™) in the amount stated in Section 5.2(a) of the Lease (defined below) to provide funds to pay costs of
acquiring the Site and the cost of improvements on the Site, together with related fixtures, and furnishings and
equipment (collectively, the “Improvements™); and

WHEREAS, the Bank has offered to lease the Site and Improvements (together, the “Facilities”) to
the City pursuant to a Lease Purchase Agreement dated as of the date hereof (as amended or supplemented
from time to time, the “Lease™) by and between the Bank, as lessor, and the City, as lessee; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to lease the Site to the Bank in consideration of payments of the above-
described Base Lease Rentals and upon the terms and conditions herein set forth and to lease the Facilities
from the Bank upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Lease;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and agreements
herein set forth, the City and the Bank do hereby covenant and agree as follows:

Section 1. Definitions. Unless otherwise defined in this Base Lease, capitalized words and
terms used in this Base Lease will have the meanings assigned thereto in Section 1.1 of the Lease.

Section 2. Representations by the City. The City represents, warrants and covenants as
follows:



(a) The City is a fourth-class city and political subdivision organized and existing under
the laws of the State of Missouri (the “State™);

(b) The lease of the Site to the Bank and the lease of the Facilities by the Bank to the
City, as provided in the Lease, is necessary, desirable and in the public interest, and the City hereby
declares its current need for the Facilities;

(c) The City, pursuant to proper action duly taken by its governing body, (i) has full
power and authority to enter into this Base Lease and the Lease and the transactions contemplated by
this Base Lease and the Lease and to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder, (ii) has been
duly authorized to execute and deliver this Base Lease and the Lease, and (iii) by proper action has
duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Base Lease and the Lease;

(d) Neither the execution and delivery of this Base Lease or the Lease, nor the fulfillment
of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof or thereof, nor the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby, conflicts with or results in a breach of the terms, conditions or
provisions of any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the City is now a party or by
which the City is bound;

(e) The City has, at the time of recording of this Base Lease, good and marketable fee
title to the Site;

() The Site is not subject to any dedication, easement, right of way, reservation in
patent, covenant, condition, restriction, lien or encumbrance which would prohibit or materially
interfere with the acquisition, construction and installation of the Improvements on the Site, as
contemplated by the Lease;

(g) All assessments or impositions of any kind with respect to the Site, that are currently
due and payable, have been paid in full;

(h) The Site is properly zoned for the purpose of the Improvements; and

(i) The City has not made, done, executed or suffered, and warrants that it will not make,
do, execute or suffer, any act or thing whereby the City’s interests in any property now or hereafter
included in the Facilities shall be or may be impaired, changed or encumbered in any manner
whatsoever except as permitted by this Base Lease and the Lease.

)] There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to the best of the City’s
knowledge after reasonable inquiry, threatened against the City at law or in equity or before any
federal, state, municipal or other government department, commission, board, bureau, agency or
instrumentality adversely affect the Site or the interest of the Bank or its assigns in the Site.

Section 3. Lease. The City hereby leases to the Bank, and the Bank hereby rents and leases
from the City, the Site on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

Section 4. Term. The term of this Base Lease shall commence as of the date of the delivery
hereof, and shall end on April 30, 2070, unless such term is sooner terminated as hereinafter provided.



Section 5. Rental. As and for rental hereunder and in consideration for the leasing of the Site
to the Bank, the Bank shall:

(a) Simultaneously with the delivery of this Base Lease, enter into the Lease;

(b) Pay the Base Lease Rentals, as described in the preambles hereof, to the City, or
pursuant to its direction, in the manner described in the Lease.

Section 6. Assignments and Subleases. The Bank may assign its rights under this Base Lease
or sublet the Facilities without the consent of the City (i) in connection with any assignment of its rights under
the Lease, (ii) if the Lease is terminated for any reason or (iii) if an “event of default” as defined in the Lease
has occurred or if the City terminates the Lease pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Lease.

Section 7. Termination. This Base Lease shall terminate upon the completion of the term set
forth in Section 4; provided, however, in the event the City makes payment of the Purchase Price or makes
all of the Rental Payments provided for in Article IV of the Lease and exercises its option to purchase the
Bank’s interest in the Facilities pursuant to Article X of the Lease, then this Base Lease shall be considered
assigned to the City and terminated through merger of the leasehold interest with the fee interest if the City is
the owner of the fee interest.

If an “event of default” under the Lease occurs or if the City terminates the Lease pursuant to Section
3.2 of the Lease, the Bank shall have the right to possession of the Facilities for the remainder of the term of
this Base Lease and shall have the right to sublease the Facilities or sell its interest in the Facilities and this
Base Lease upon whatever terms and conditions it deems prudent; provided, however, that the Bank shall
provide the City with adequate public liability insurance covering the premises for the remainder of the term
and will furnish the City with evidence thereof.

Section 8. Default. The City shall not have the right to exclude the Bank from the Facilities or
take possession of the Facilities (other than pursuant to the Lease) or to terminate this Base Lease prior to the
expiration of its term upon any default by the Bank hereunder, except that if, upon the exercise of the option
to purchase the Bank’s interest in the Facilities granted to the City in Article X of the Lease and after the
payment of the purchase price specified therein and other sums payable under the Lease, the Bank fails to
convey its interest in the Facilities to the City pursuant to said option, then the City shall have the right to
terminate this Base Lease, such termination to be effective thirty (30) days after delivery of written notice of
such termination to the Bank. In the event of any default by the Bank hereunder, however, the City may
maintain an action for damages or, if permitted in equity, for specific performance.

Section 9. Quiet Enjoyment. At all times during the term of this Base Lease, the Bank shall
peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy all of the Facilities, subject to the rights of the City under the
Lease.

Section 10.  No Merger. No union of the interests of the City and the Bank herein shall result in
a merger of this Base Lease and the title to the Site, except as described in Section 7.

Section 11. Taxes and Assessments. The City covenants and agrees to pay any and all
assessments of any kind or character and all taxes levied or assessed upon the Site.

Section 12. Warranty and Indemnity Regarding Environmental Matters. The City hereby
warrants and represents that (i) there has not been any “release” (as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 9601(22)) or threat



of a “release” of any “hazardous substances™ (as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 9601(14)) on or about any of the
Facilities, (ii) no part of the Facilities is or may be a “facility” (within the meaning of 42 U.5.C. § 9607(a)),
and (iii) the Facilities and the use thereof are in compliance with all applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules
and regulations of any governmental or quasi-governmental authority, specifically including without
limitation the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act, both as amended, and all other environmental protection or toxic waste or
hazardous substance handling, treatment, storage or disposal laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations.

The City agrees to provide the Bank with copies of any notifications of releases of oil or hazardous
materials or substances or of any environmental hazards or potential hazards which are given by or on behalf
of the City to any federal, state or local agencies or authorities or which are received by the City from any
federal, state or local agencies or authorities with respect to the Facilities. Such copies shall be sent to the
Bank concurrently with their being mailed or delivered to the governmental agencies or authorities or within
10 days after they are received by the City.

The City agrees to provide the Bank with copies of all emergency and hazardous chemical inventory
forms (hereinafter “Notices™) with respect to the Facilities previously given, as of the date hereof, to any
federal, state or local governmental authority or agency as required pursuant to the Emergency Planning and
Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C.A. Section 1101 ef seq., and to provide the Bank with
copies of all such Notices subsequently sent to any such governmental authority or agency as required
pursuant to the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986. Such copies of subsequent
Notices shall be sent to the Bank concurrently with their being mailed to any such governmental authority or
agency.

The City hereby covenants and agrees, to the extent permitted by law and without waiving any rights
of sovereign immunity, to indemnify, protect and hold harmless the Bank from and against any and all claims,
demands, liabilities and costs, including without limitation attorneys’ fees, arising from (a) any “release” (as
defined above) or threat of a “release,” actual or alleged, of any “hazardous substances” (as defined above)
upon or about the Facilities or respecting any products or materials previously or now located upon, delivered
to or in transit to or from the Facilities regardless of whether such release or threat of a release or alleged
release or threat of release has occurred prior to the date hereof and hereafter occurs and regardless of whether
such release or threat of a release or alleged release or threat of a release occurs as the result of the negligence
or misconduct of the City or any third party or otherwise, or (b) any violation, actual or alleged, of or any
other liability under or in connection with any law, statute, ordinance, rule or regulation of any governmental
or quasi-governmental authority, specifically including without limitation the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act and the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act, both as
amended, or any other environmental protection or toxic waste or hazardous substance handling, treatment,
storage or disposal laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or regulations upon or about the Facilities or respecting
any products or materials previously or now located upon, delivered to or in transit to or from the Facilities,
regardless of whether such violation or alleged violation has occurred prior to the date hereof or hereafter
occurs and regardless of whether such violation or alleged violation occurs as a result of the negligence or
misconduct of the City or any third party or otherwise. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not be
obligated to indemnify and hold harmless the Bank from and against any claims, demands, liabilities and
costs, including without limitation attorneys’ fees, which arise solely as a result of the negligence or
misconduct of the Bank.

Section 13. Waiver of Personal Liability. All liabilities under this Base Lease on the part of
the Bank are solely corporate liabilities of the Bank as a corporation, and, to the extent permitted by law, the
City hereby releases each and every director and officer of the Bank of and from any personal or individual



liability under this Base Lease. No director or officer of the Bank shall at any time or under any circumstances
be individually or personally liable under this Base Lease for anything done or omitted to be done by the Bank
hereunder.

Section 14. Eminent Domain. (a) In the event the whole or any part of the Facilities is taken
by eminent domain proceedings, the interest of the Bank shall be recognized. The proceeds of said
condemnation shall be applied as provided in Article XI of the Lease. Under State statutes, the City has
the power to condemn property for its purposes, and the City acknowledges that if the City condemned the
Facilities, such action could adversely affect the continuation of this Base Lease. The City further
acknowledges that condemnation of the Facilities would adversely affect the Bank and that without the
Bank’s interest in the Facilities, the Bank would not lease the Facilities to the City pursuant to the Lease.

The City and the Bank have reached agreement on the terms of the acquisition of the Facilities, at
the City’s option, and to the use of the Facilities, all as set forth in the Lease. Any acquisition of the Bank’s
interest in the Facilities or rights to its use by the City (whether pursuant to the exercise of eminent domain
powers or otherwise) shall be pursuant to and in accordance with the Lease, including payment of Rental
Payments and the applicable Purchase Price (as defined and set forth in the Lease). If the City allows the
Lease to expire without exercising its option to purchase (whether by failure to exercise its option to extend
the Lease for a Renewal Term, failure to exercise its option to purchase at the conclusion of the Maximum
Lease Term or failure to cure an Event of Default), that action shall constitute an irrevocable determination
by the City that the Facilities are not required by it for any public purpose for the term of this Base Lease.

The City hereby covenants and agrees, to the extent it may lawfully do so, that if for any reason it
exercises the power of eminent domain with respect to the Facilities, the appraisement value of the Facilities
shall not be less than the Rental Payments then due plus then applicable Purchase Price as defined and set
forth in the Lease.

(b) In the event that title to all or a portion of the Site is challenged or threatened by means of
competent legal or equitable action, the City covenants that it shall cooperate with the Bank and shall take
all reasonable actions, including where appropriate the lawful exercise of the City’s power of eminent
domain, in order to quiet title to the Site in the City.

Section 15. Leaseback to the City; Term; Rental. Contemporaneously herewith the Bank and
the City will execute the Lease whereby the Bank subleases back to the City and the City subleases from the
Bank the Facilities in accordance therewith. Title to the Site shall remain in the City at all times. The Lease
includes in Article X thereof the option of the City, upon payment of the purchase price, to purchase the
Bank’s interest in the Facilities.

Section 16. Partial Invalidity. If any one or more of the terms, provisions, covenants or
conditions of this Base Lease shall to any extent be declared invalid, unenforceable, void or voidable for any
reason whatsoever by a court of competent jurisdiction, the finding or order or decree of which becomes final,
none of the remaining terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Base Lease shall be affected thereby,
and each provision of this Base Lease shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Section 17. Notices. All written notices to be given under this Base Lease shall be given by mail
to the party entitled thereto at its address set forth in the Lease, or at such address as the party may provide to
the other party in writing from time to time. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been received 48 hours
after deposit in the United States mail in registered form, with postage fully prepaid.



Section 18. Section Headings. All section headings contained herein are for convenience of
reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Base Lease.

Section 19. Amendments, Changes and Modifications. This Base Lease may not be
effectively amended, changed, modified, altered or supplemented except with the written consent of both the
Bank and the City. Any waiver of any provision of this Base Lease or any right or remedy hereunder must
be affirmatively and expressly made in writing and shall not be implied from in action, course of dealing or
otherwise.

Section 20. Applicable Law. This Base Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State.

Section 21. Execution. This Base Lease may be executed in any number of counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed to be an original but all together shall constitute but one and the same Base Lease.
It is also agreed that separate counterparts of this Base Lease may be executed by the Bank and the City all
with the same force and effect as though the same counterpart had been executed by both the Bank and the

City.

Section 22, Successors. This Base Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Section 23, Complete Agreement. This written agreement is a final expression of the
agreement between the parties hereto and such agreement may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior
oral agreement or of a contemporaneous oral agreement between the parties hereto. No unwritten oral
agreement between the parties exists.

Section 24, Electronic Transactions. The parties agree that the transaction described herein
may be conducted and related documents may be sent, received and stored by electronic means. Copies,
telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other reproductions of original executed documents will be deemed
to be authentic and valid counterparts of such original documents for all purposes, including the filing of any
claim, action or suit in the appropriate court of law.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Bank have caused this Base Lease to be executed by
their respective officers thereunto duly authorized, all as of the day and year first above written.

CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI, as Base Lessor

(SEAL)
By:
Name: Richard Sullivan
Title: Mayor
ATTEST:

Name: Darla Sapp
Title: City Clerk

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF MISSOURI )

COUNTY OF BOONE )

On this day of , 2021, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, appeared
RICHARD SULLIVAN, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the
MAYOR of the CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURLI, a fourth-class city and political subdivision duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing
instrument is the corporate seal of said City, and that said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf of
said City by authority of its Board of Aldermen, and said officer acknowledged said instrument to be
executed for the purposes therein stated and as the free act and deed of said City.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, the day and
year last above written.

Printed Name:
Notary Public in and for said State
Commissioned in County

[Seal]

Base Lease



CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY,
as Base Lessee

By:
Name:
Title:
ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) S8.
COUNTY OF BOONE )

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this __ day of , 2021, before me, the undersigned,
a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, came » to me personally
known, who, being by me being before me duly sworn did say that (s)he is a of
CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY, a state banking corporation formed under the laws of the
State of Missouri, and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said corporation by authority of its board
of directors, and said official acknowledged said instrument to be executed for the purposes therein stated
and as the free act and deed of said corporation,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and
year last above written.

Printed Name: ___
Notary Public in and for said State
Commissioned in County

[Seal]

Base Lease



SCHEDULE 1 TO BASE LEASE

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

Lot Two (2) of McKinney Subdivision in the City of Ashland, Boone County, Missouri, as shown by the
plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 46, Page 11, Records of Boone County, Missouri.



(Space above reserved for Recorder’s use)

TITLE OF DOCUMENT: LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT
DATE OF DOCUMENT: April 30, 2021
GRANTOR(S) NAME AND CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY
MAILING ADDRESS: P.O. Box 678

Columbia, MO 65205

Attn: Dawn Shellabarger
GRANTEE(S) NAME AND CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI
MAILING ADDRESS: 109 East Broadway

Ashland, MO 65010
Attention: City Clerk

RETURN DOCUMENTS TO:

David S. Martin

Gilmore & Bell, P.C.

2405 Grand Boulevard, Suite 1100
Kansas City, Missouri 64108

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

See Schedule 1 attached




LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT
between

CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY
as the Lessor

and

CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI
as the Lessee




LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

LESSOR: CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY, a state banking corporation formed under the
laws of the State of Missouri

LESSEE: CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI, a fourth-class city and political subdivision of the
State of Missouri

DATE: As of April 30, 2021

THIS LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT, dated as of the date set forth above, by and between
the Lessor named above (together with its successors and assigns, “Lessor” or “Bank™), and the Lessee
named above (together with its successors, “Lessee” or “City™),

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, upon the background provided by the recitals contained in the Base Lease (defined
herein) the Bank proposes to take the following actions:

(a) Lease from the City, the real property described in Schedule 1 (the “Site™);
(b) Provide funds in the aggregate amount of the principal portions of Rental Payments
listed on Exhibit A to pay costs of completing the improvements described on Exhibit B (the

“Improvements”™), all of which Improvements will be located on the Site; and

(c) Lease its interest in the Site and the Improvements (together, the “Facilities™) to the
City for the rentals and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth; and

WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to the foregoing proposals of the Bank, desires to lease the
Facilities from the Bank, for the rentals and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and agreements

herein set forth, the Bank and the City do hereby covenant and agree as follows:
ARTICLE ]
DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF CONSTRUCTION

Section 1.1, Definitions of Words and Terms. In addition to words and terms defined herein,
the following words and terms as used in the Base Lease and this Lease Purchase Agreement will have the
following meanings, unless some other meaning is plainly intended:

“Additional Rent” means those payments required to be made by the City by Section 4.2,

“Bank Representative” means the person or persons at the time designated to act on behalf of the

Bank in matters relating to the Base Lease and this Lease Purchase Agreement as evidenced by a written
certificate furnished to the City containing the specimen signature of such person or persons and signed on



behalf of the Bank by its authorized officer. Such certificate may designate an alternate or alternates, each
of whom will be entitled to perform all duties of the Bank Representative.

“Base Lease™ means the Base Lease, dated as of the date hereof, between the Bank and the City, as
from time to time supplemented or amended in accordance with Section 19 of the Base Lease.

“City Representative” means the Mayor, City Administrator, City Clerk, or such other person or
persons at the time designated to act on behalf of the City in matters relating to the Base Lease and this
Lease Purchase Agreement as evidenced by a written certificate furnished to the Bank containing the
specimen signature of such person or persons and signed on behalf of the City by its City Administrator.
Such certificate may designate an alternate or alternates each of whom will be entitled to perform all duties
of the City Representative.

“Code™ means Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Commencement Date” is the date when the term of this Lease Purchase Agreement and the
City’s obligation to pay rent commences, which date will be the date on which the first installment of funds
to pay the Project Costs are deposited in the Project Fund.

“Completion Date” means the date of completion of the Improvements as that date is certified as
provided in Section 5.4.

“Construction Contract” means the construction contract for the construction of the
Improvements in accordance with the Plans and Specifications.

“Counsel” means an attorney duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of any state
and, without limitation, may include legal counsel for either the City or the Bank.

“Event of Default” or “Default” means any Event of Default as defined in Section 12.1.

“Facilities” means the Facilities referred to in the recitals of this Lease Purchase Agreement,
including the Bank’s interest in the Site and the Improvements.

“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the City for financial and budgetary purposes as set forth on
Exhibit B.

“Impositions” means those Impositions defined as such in Article VI
“Issuance Year” is the calendar year in which the Commencement Date occurs.

“Lease Purchase Agreement” means this Lease Purchase Agreement between the Bank and the
City, as from time to time supplemented and amended in accordance with Article XIII.

“Lease Term” means the Original Term and any Renewal Terms.

“Maximum Lease Term” means the Original Term and all Renewal Terms through the final
Rental Payment Date listed on Exhibit A.

“Net Proceeds” when used with respect to any insurance proceeds or any condemnation award or
amounts received from the sale of property under the threat of condemnation, means the amount remaining



after deducting all expenses (including attorneys’ fees and any expenses of the City and the Bank) incurred
in the collection of such proceeds or award from the gross proceeds thereof.

“Original Term” means the initial term of this Lease Purchase Agreement beginning as of the
Commencement Date and ending on the last day of the City’s current Fiscal Year.

“Plans and Specifications™ means the Plans and Specifications for the Improvements referred to in
Section 5.1, any amendments and additions thereto, and any change orders thereto.

“Project Costs™ means all reasonable or necessary expenses incidental to the acquisition of the Site
and the completion of the Improvements, and the delivery of this Lease Purchase Agreement, including the
expenses of studies, surveys, land title and title policies, architectural and engineering services, legal and
other special services and all other necessary and incidental expenses.

“Project Documents” means the Base Lease, this Lease Purchase Agreement, the Construction
Contract and any other agreements, documents or certificates related to the foregoing or the Facilities.

“Project Fund” means the Project Fund, established pursuant to this Lease Purchase Agreement.

“Purchase Price” means the amount designated as such on Exhibit A that the City may, in its
discretion, pay to the Bank to purchase the Facilities.

“Renewal Terms"” means the renewal terms of this Lease Purchase Agreement during which the
Lease Term is extended in accordance with Section 3.2, each having a duration of one year and a term
coextensive with the City’s Fiscal Year except as otherwise provided in said Section 3.2.

“Rental Payment Dates” means the dates during the Lease Term on which Rental Payments are
due as set forth on Exhibit A.

“Rental Payments” means those payments required to be made by the City by Section 4.1.
“Site” means the real property described in Schedule 1 to this Lease Purchase Agreement.
“State” means the State of Missouri.

“Tax-exempt Portion” means the portion of Rental Payments so designated on Exhibit A hereto,
the interest component of which is excludable from the gross income of the Bank for federal and State of
Missouri income tax purposes.

“Taxable Portion™ means the portion of Rental Payments so designated on Exhibit A hereto, the
interest component of which shall be included in the gross income of the Bank for federal and State of
Missouri income tax purposes.

Section 1.2.  Rules of Construction. Words of the masculine gender will be deemed and
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders. Unless the context otherwise
indicates, the words importing the singular number will include the plural and vice versa, and words
importing person will include firms, associations and corporations, including public bodies, as well as
natural persons,



The words “herein,” “hereby,” “hereunder,” “hereof,” “hereto,” “hereinbefore,” “hereinafter” and
other equivalent words refer to this Lease Purchase Agreement and not solely to the particular article,
section, paragraph or subparagraph hereof in which such word is used.

Reference herein to a particular article, a particular section, a particular exhibit or a particular
schedule will be construed to be a reference to the specified article, section, exhibit or schedule hereof or
hereto unless the context or use clearly indicates another or different meaning or intent.

Whenever an item or items are listed after the word “including,” such listing is not intended to be a
listing that excludes items not listed.

Section 1.3.  Section and Article Headings. The Section and Article headings herein are for
convenience only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any of the provisions hereof.

Section 1.4.  Execution of Counterparts. This Lease Purchase Agreement may be executed
simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original, and all of
which together will constitute but one and the same instrument,

Section 1.5.  Construction and Enforcement. This Lease Purchase Agreement will be
construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State. Wherever in this Lease Purchase
Agreement it is provided that either party will make any payment or perform or refrain from performing any
act or obligation, each such provision will, even though not so expressed, be construed as an express
covenant to make such payment or to perform, or not to perform, as the case may be, such act or obligation.

Section 1.6.  Severability. In the event any provision hereof will be determined to be invalid or
unenforceable, the validity and effect of the other provisions hereof will not be affected thereby.

Section 1.7.  Complete Agreement. This written agreement is a final expression of the
agreement between the parties hereto and such agreement may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior
oral agreement or of a contemporaneous oral agreement between the parties hereto. No unwritten oral
agreement between the parties exists.

Section 1.8.  Accounting Terms. Accounting terms used herein and not otherwise specifically
defined will have the meaning ascribed to such terms by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, as from time to time in effect.

ARTICLE II

REPRESENTATIONS

Section 2.1.  Representations by the City. The City represents, warrants and covenants as
follows:

(a) The City is a public body corporate and politic duly organized and existing under
the constitution and laws of the State with full power and authority to enter into each of the Project
Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby and to perform all of its obligations
thereunder;



(b) The lease of the Facilities by the Bank to the City, as provided in this Lease
Purchase Agreement, is necessary, desirable and in the public interest, and the City hereby declares
its current need for the Facilities;

(c) The Improvements, when completed in accordance with the Plans and
Specifications and the Construction Contract, will result in a structurally sound facility and related
improvements which will be in compliance with all applicable building and design codes and the
City’s requirements and will result in a facility suitable for the use by the City set forth on Exhibit
B;

(d) The City has estimated, and the City belicves, that the aggregate of the Project
Costs, including the acquisition of the Site and the Improvements constructed in accordance with
the Plans and Specifications and the Construction Contract, will not exceed the amount being
provided by the Bank under this Lease Purchase Agreement together with other funds the City has
available to pay such Project Costs;

(e) The City has duly authorized the execution and delivery of each of the Project
Documents by proper action by its governing body at meetings duly called, regularly convened and
attended throughout by the requisite majority of the members thereof or by other appropriate
official approval, and all requirements have been met and procedures have occurred in order to
ensure the validity and enforceability of each of the Project Documents;

(N Neither the execution and delivery of any Project Document, nor the fulfillment of
or compliance with the terms and conditions thereof, nor the consummation of the transactions
contemplated thereby, conflicts with or results in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of
any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the City is a party or by which the City is
bound;

(2) There is no proceeding pending or threatened in any court or before any
governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal challenging the validity of the authotization
or the power or authority of the City to enter into any Project Document or the validity or
enforceability of any Project Document or which, if adversely determined, would adversely affect
the transactions contemplated by any Project Document or the interest of the Bank or its assigns
under any Project Document;

(h) the City has not made, done, executed or suffered, and warrants that it will not
make, do, execute or suffer, any act or thing whereby the City’s interests in any property now or
hereafter included in the Facilities will be or may be impaired, changed or encumbered in any
manner whatsoever, except as contemplated by the Project Documents;

(i) No event or condition that constitutes, or with the giving of notice or the lapse of
time or both would constitute, an Event of Default exists at the date hereof;

)] The City will do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep in
full force and effect its existence as a body corporate and politic;

(k) The City has complied, or will comply, with such public bidding requirements as
may be applicable to any of the Project Documents and the acquisition and construction by the City
of the Site and the Improvements; and



(M During the Lease Term, the Facilities will be used by the City only for the purpose
of performing governmental or proprietary functions of the City consistent with the permissible
scope of the City’s authority.

ARTICLE III
GRANTING PROVISIONS; TERM

Section 3.1. Granting of Leasehold. The Bank, by these presents, hereby rents, leases and lets
the Facilities unto the City, and the City hereby rents, leases and hires the Facilities from the Bank for the
Rental Payments and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

Section 3.2.  Lease Purchase Agreement Term. The Original Term will commence as of the
Commencement Date and will terminate on the last day of the City’s current Fiscal Year. The Lease Term
may be continued, at the option of the City, at the end of the Original Term or any Renewal Term for an
additional one-year Renewal Term; provided that the final Renewal Term will not extend beyond the final
Rental Payment Date set forth on Exhibit A. The City will be deemed to have exercised its option to
continue this Lease Purchase Agreement for the next Renewal Term unless the City has terminated this
Lease Purchase Agreement pursuant to Section 3.3 or 10.1. The terms and conditions during any Renewal
Term will be the same as the terms and conditions during the Original Term, except that the Rental
Payments will be as provided on Exhibit A.

The City currently intends, subject to the provisions of Section 3.3, to continue this Lease Purchase
Agreement through the Maximum Lease Term and to pay the Rental Payments hereunder. The City
reasonably believes that legally available funds in an amount sufficient to pay all Rental Payments during
the Original Term and each of the Renewal Terms through the Maximum Lease Term can be obtained. The
responsible financial officer of the City will do all things lawfully within his or her power to obtain and
maintain funds from which the Rental Payments may be made, including making provision for such Rental
Payments to the extent necessary in each proposed annual budget submitted for approval in accordance with
applicable procedures of the City and to exhaust all available reviews and appeals in the event such portion
of the budget is not approved. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the decision to budget and appropriate funds
or to extend this Lease Purchase Agreement for any Renewal Term is to be made in accordance with the
City’s normal procedures for such decisions, and the then-current governing body of the City will have the
final responsibility for that decision.

Section 3.3.  Nonappropriation. The City is obligated only to pay such Rental Payments under
this Lease Purchase Agreement as may lawfully be made from funds budgeted and appropriated for that
purpose during the City’s then current Fiscal Year. Should the City fail to budget, appropriate or otherwise
make available funds sufficient to pay Rental Payments following the then current Original Term or
Renewal Term, this Lease Purchase Agreement will be deemed terminated at the end of the then current
Original Term or Renewal Term. The City agrees to deliver notice to the Bank of such termination at least
90 days prior to the end of the then current Original Term or Renewal Term, but failure to give such notice
will not extend the term beyond such Original Term or Renewal Term. If this Lease Purchase Agreement is
terminated in accordance with this Section, the City agrees to transfer possession of the Facilities to the
Bank.

Section 3.4.  Use of Premises. The City will have the right to use the Facilities for any essential
governmental or proprietary purpose of the City, subject to the limitations contained in the Project
Documents.



ARTICLE IV
PROVISIONS FOR PAYMENT OF RENTAL PAYMENTS

Section4.1.  Rental Payments. The City will promptly make Rental Payments, exclusively
from legally available funds, in lawful money of the United States of America to the Bank on each Rental
Payment Date, in such amounts as are described on Exhibit A. The City will pay the Bank a charge on any
Rental Payment not paid on the Rental Payment Date such Rental Payment is due at the rate of 10% per
annum or the maximum amount permitted by law, whichever is less, from such date. A portion of each
Rental Payment is paid as, and represents payment of, interest, as set forth on Exhibit A. The Rental
Payments consist of a Tax-exempt Portion and a Taxable Portion, as set forth on Exhibit A.

Section 4.2,  Additional Rent. The City will pay, subject to the provisions of Section 3.3, as
Additional Rent (i) all Impositions (as defined in Article VI); (ii) all amounts required under Section 4.6 or
14.5 and all other payments of whatever nature which the City has agreed to pay or assume under this Lease
Purchase Agreement; (iii) all expenses, including attorneys’ fees, incurred in connection with the
enforcement of any rights under this Lease Purchase Agreement by the Bank. Amounts required to be paid
under this Section will be paid directly to the person or entity owed.

Section 4.3.  Rental Payments and Additional Rent Constitute Current Expense. The
obligation of the City to pay the Rental Payments and the Additional Rent and other amounts payable
hereunder is subject to the provisions of Section 3.3, constitutes a current expense of the City and does not
constitute a general obligation or indebtedness of the City for which the City is obligated to levy or pledge
any form of taxation or for which the City has levied or pledged any form of taxation; such obligation will
not be construed to be a debt of the City in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory
limitation or requirement, but in each Fiscal Year will be payable solely from the amounts budgeted or
appropriated therefor out of the income and revenue provided for such Fiscal Year, any proceeds of the
Facilities and the Net Proceeds of any insurance or condemnation awards.

Section4.4.  Rental Payments and Additional Rent Payable Without Abatement or
Set-Off; the City’s Obligations. Subject to the provisions of Section 3.3, the City covenants and agrees
that all payments of Rental Payments and Additional Rent will be made by the City on or before the date the
same become due, and the City will perform all of its other obligations, covenants and agreements
hereunder (including the obligation to pay Rental Payments and Additional Rent) without notice or demand
and without abatement, deduction, setoff, counterclaim, recoupment or defense or any right of termination
or cancellation arising from any circumstance whatsoever, whether now existing or hereafter arising and
irrespective of whether the acquisition or construction of the Improvements has been started or completed.

Nothing in this Lease Purchase Agreement will be construed as a waiver by the City of any rights or
claims the City may have against the Bank under this Lease Purchase Agreement or otherwise, but any
recovery upon such rights and claims will be from the Bank separately, it being the intent of this Lease
Purchase Agreement that the City will be unconditionally and absolutely obligated to perform fully all of its
obligations, agreements and covenants under this Lease Purchase Agreement, including its obligation to pay
Rental Payments and Additional Rent. The City may, however, at its own cost and expense and in its own
name or in the name of the Bank, prosecute or defend any action or proceeding or take any other action
involving third persons which the City deems reasonably necessary in order to secure or protect its right of
possession, occupancy and use hereunder, and in such event the Bank hereby agrees to cooperate fully with
the City and to take all action necessary to effect the substitution of the City for the Bank in any such action
or proceeding if the City so requests.



Section 4.5.  Prepayment of Rental Payments. The City may at any time, upon 30 days’
notice to the Bank, prepay all or any part of the Rental Payments provided for hereunder and may designate
in such notice whether the prepayment shall be applied as a reduction of the Tax-exempt Portion or the
Taxable Portion if less than all of the outstanding Rental Payments are being prepaid.

Section 4.6.  Advances. In the event the City fails to either maintain the insurance required by
this Lease Purchase Agreement or keep the Facilities in good repair, the Bank may, but will be under no
obligation to, purchase the required insurance and pay the cost of the premiums therefor and maintain and
repair the Facilities and pay the cost thereof. All amounts so advanced by the Bank will constitute
Additional Rent for then current Original Term or Renewal Term and the City covenants and agrees to pay
such amounts so advanced by the Bank with interest thereon from the date advanced by the Bank until paid
at the rate of 10% per annum or the maximum amount permitted by law, whichever is less. In accordance
with Section 427.120 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, unless the City provides evidence of the
insurance coverage required by this Lease Purchase Agreement, the Bank may purchase insurance at the
City’s expense to protect the Bank’s interests hereunder. This insurance may, but need not, protect the
City’s interests. The coverage that the Bank may purchase may not pay any claim that the City may make
or any claim that may be made against the City in connection with the Facilities. The City may later
cancel any insurance purchased by the Bank, but only after providing evidence that the City has obtained
insurance as required by this Lease Purchase Agreement. If the Bank purchases insurance for the
Facilities, the City will be responsible for the costs of that insurance, including the insurance premium,
interest and any other charges the Bank may impose in connection with the placement of the insurance,
until the effective date of the cancellation or expiration of the insurance. The costs of the insurance will
be added as Additional Rent. The costs of the insurance may be more than the cost of insurance the City
may be able to obtain on its own.

ARTICLEV

ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, EQUIPPING AND
INSTALLATION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS

Section 5.1.  Construction of Improvements. The City has entered, or will enter, into the
Construction Contract providing for the completion of the Improvements and has provided, or will provide
immediately upon entering such Construction Contract, a copy of such Construction Contract to the Bank.
The City will cause the Improvements to be completed in accordance with the Plans and Specifications and
the Construction Contract as promptly as practicable and with all reasonable dispatch.

Concurrently with the delivery of this Lease Purchase Agreement, the City will file with the Bank
the Plans and Specifications in the form in which they then exist (it being understood that the Plans and
Specifications may not be complete at that time). Thereafter pursuant to the requirements of Section 5.3,
the City will promptly file the completed Plans and Specifications and such additions and supplements
thereto as the same are prepared.

Section 5.2. Project Fund; Payment of Project Costs.

(a) There is hereby established in the custody of the Bank an account designated as the “City of
Ashland, Missouri — Project Fund” to be held and administered by the Bank in accordance with this Lease
Purchase Agreement. On the Commencement Date, the Bank shall deposit the amount of $2,138,910.00, as
the purchase price of the portion of this Lease represented by the Tax-exempt Portion of the Rental
Payments (the “Tax-exempt Portion Proceeds”), and $438,090.00, as the purchase price of the portion of
this Lease represented by the Taxable Portion of the Rental Payments (the “Taxable Portion Proceeds”),

8-



into the Project Fund. Project Costs shall be paid from the Project Fund in accordance with and subject to
the terms and conditions set forth in this Section. Moneys in the Project Fund will be used only to pay for
Project Costs, including costs of delivering this Lease Purchase Agreement. Payment will be made from the
Project Fund for the Project Costs upon presentation to the Bank of a written request and certification in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit D, signed by a City Representative. Payment shall be deemed to be made
out of the Tax-exempt Portion Proceeds and the Taxable Portion Proceeds on a pro-rata basis for costs of
delivering this Lease Purchase Agreement (based on the percentage of aggregate original proceeds
generated by each portion), then from the Taxable Portion Proceeds until such proceeds are exhausted, then
from the Tax-exempt Portion Proceeds.

(b) The Project Fund will terminate upon the occurrence of the earlier of (1) the presentation to
the Bank of (i) a Completion Certificate, a form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C, and (ii) a
certificate of an insurance consultant and/or certificates of insurance evidencing compliance with Section
7.1 of this Lease Purchase Agreement; or (2) the occurrence and continuance beyond any applicable grace
or cure period of an Event of Default under Section 12.1 giving rise to remedies under Section 12.2. The
Completion Certificate may also state that it is given without prejudice to any rights of the City that then
exist or may subsequently come into being against third parties. Upon termination as described in (1) or (2),
any amount remaining in the Project Fund will be promptly applied by the Bank, without further
authorization, as provided in Section 5.4 of this Lease Purchase Agreement,

(c) The City hereby grants to the Bank a first priority perfected security interest in the Project
Fund and all proceeds thereof. The Bank shall hold the Project Fund as described in this Section and shall
be deemed to have possession of the same for the purpose of perfecting its security interest.

Section 5.3, Changes in the Plans and Specifications or Construction Contract or
Modifications of the Improvements. The City may make any changes in or modifications of the Plans and
Specifications subsequent to the date of this Lease Purchase Agreement and prior to the Completion Date,
may make any changes in or modifications of the Construction Contract and may make any deletions from
or substitutions or additions to the Improvements (such completion, changes, modifications, deletions,
substitutions and additions being together herein called “change orders™), subject to satisfaction of the
following conditions:

(a) Such change orders do not materially alter the size, scope or character of the
Improvements or impair the structural integrity or utility of the Improvements;

(b) Prior approval of the contractors’ surety has been obtained:

(c) Such change order will not substantially postpone the date by which the
Improvements are required to be completed or alter the amount of liquidated damages resulting
from the failure to complete the Improvements by that date without the prior written approval of the
Bank; and

(d) To the extent that any change order, together with all prior change orders, will
increase the estimated Project Costs by more than 5%, (i) the City has set aside in a separate
account funds to be used solely to pay Project Costs and sufficient to pay such excess, (ii) payment
of Project Costs equal to the amount of such excess will be paid by the City directly to the
contractors and to the suppliers of materials and services as the same become due, (iii) the City will
save the Bank whole and harmless from any obligation to pay such excess, and (iv) any such
payment by the City will not diminish the City’s obligation to make Rental Payments or other
payments under this Lease Purchase Agreement.



No change order will be effective until delivered to the Bank in accordance with the foregoing
provisions.

Section 5.4.  Completion Date; Excess Funds. The Completion Date will be evidenced to the
Bank upon receipt by the Bank of a Completion Certificate complying with the requirements of Section
5.2(c). In the event that any moneys remain in the Project Fund on the Completion Date, such moneys will
be paid to the Bank as a reduction of the Tax-exempt Portion of the Rental Payments.

Section 5.5.  Design, Construction and Maintenance. The Bank will have no responsibility in
connection with the selection of the Improvements, any contractor, subcontractor or supplier, the Plans and
Specifications or the design of the Improvements, their suitability for the use intended by the City, or the
performance by any contractor, subcontractor or supplier in acquiring, constructing and installing the
Improvements. The Bank has no obligation to acquire, construct, furnish, equip, install, erect, test, inspect.
service or maintain the Facilities or any portion thereof under any circumstances, but such actions will be
the obligation of the City. The Bank’s sole responsibility in connection with the Improvements is to deposit
the sums in the Project Fund to pay Project Costs in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Lease
Purchase Agreement.

Section 5.6.  Warranties. The Bank hereby assigns to the City for and during the Lease Term,
all of its interest in all warranties, guarantees or other contract rights against any contractor, subcontractor or
supplier, expressed or implied, issued on or applicable to the Improvements, and the Bank hereby authorizes
the City to obtain the customary services furnished in connection with such warranties, guarantees or other
contract rights at the City’s expense. The City’s sole remedy for the breach of such warranties, guarantees
or other contract rights will be against any contractor, subcontractor or supplier, and not against the Bank,
nor will such matter have any effect whatsoever on the rights of the Bank with respect to this Lease
Purchase Agreement, including the right to receive full and timely Rental Payments, Additional Rent and
other payments hereunder. The City expressly acknowledges that the Bank does not make nor has it made
any representation or warranty whatsoever as to the existence or availability of such warranties, guarantees
or other contract rights of the manufacturer or supplier of any portion of the Improvements.

Section 5.7.  DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES. THE BANK MAKES NO WARRANTY
OR REPRESENTATION, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE VALUE, DESIGN,
CONDITION OR FITNESS FOR PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR FITNESS FOR USE OF THE
FACILITIES OR ANY PART THEREOF, OR WARRANTY WITH RESPECT THERETO. IN NO
EVENT WILL THE BANK BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGE IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS LEASE
PURCHASE AGREEMENT OR THE EXISTENCE, FURNISHING, FUNCTIONING OR THE CITY’S
USE OF THE FACILITIES OR ANY PART THEREOF.

ARTICLE VI
IMPOSITIONS

Section 6.1.  Impositions. The City will bear, pay and discharge, before the delinquency
thereof, as Additional Rent, all taxes and assessments, general and special, if any, which may be lawfully
taxed, charged, levied, assessed or imposed upon or against or be payable for or in respect of the Facilities,
including any taxes and assessments not of the kind enumerated above to the extent that the same are
lawfully made, levied or assessed in lieu of or in addition to taxes or assessments now customarily levied
against real or personal property, and further including all water and sewer charges, assessments and other
general governmental charges and impositions whatsoever, foreseen or unforeseen, which if not paid when

-10-



due would impair the security of the Bank or encumber the Facilities (all of the foregoing being herein
referred to as “Impositions™).

Section 6.2.  Contest of Impositions. The City has the right, in its own name or in the Bank’s
name, to contest the validity or amount of any Imposition which the City is required to bear, pay and
discharge pursuant to the terms of this Article by appropriate legal proceedings instituted at least 10 days
before the contested Imposition becomes delinquent and may permit the Imposition so contested to remain
unpaid during the period of such contest and any appeal therefrom unless the Bank notifies the City that, in
the opinion of Counsel, by nonpayment of any such items the interest of the Bank in the Facilities will be
materially endangered or the Facilities or any part thereof will be subject to loss or forfeiture, in which event
the City will promptly pay such taxes, assessments or charges or provide the Bank with full security against
any loss which may result from nonpayment, in form satisfactory to the Bank. The Bank agrees to
cooperate with the City in connection with any and all administrative or judicial proceedings related to
Impositions. The City will hold the Bank whole and harmless from any costs and expenses the Bank may
incur with respect to any Imposition,

ARTICLE VI
INSURANCE; INDEMNITY

Section 7.1.  Insurance Required. The City will, during the Lease Term, cause the Facilities to
be kept continuously insured against such risks customarily insured against for facilities such as the
Facilities and will pay (except as otherwise provided herein), as the same become due, all premiums in
respect thereof, such insurance to include the following policies of insurance:

(a) Insurance insuring the Facilities against loss or damage by fire, lightning and all
other risks covered by the extended coverage insurance endorsement then in use in the State in an
amount not less than the lesser of an amount equal to the full insurable value thereof or then
applicable Purchase Price under Section 10.1 (subject to reasonable loss deductible clauses) issued
by such insurance company or companies authorized to do business in the State as may be selected
by the City. The full insurable value of the Facilities may be determined from time to time at the
request of the City or the Bank (but not less frequently than every five years) by an architect,
contractor, appraiser, appraisal company or one of the insurers, to be selected, subject to the Bank’s
approval, and paid by the City. The policy or policies of such insurance will name the City and the
Bank as insureds and loss payees. All proceeds from such policies of insurance will be applied as
provided in Article XI. During completion of the Improvements, the City may cause to be
provided, insofar as the Improvements are concerned, the insurance required by subparagraph (b)
below in lieu of the insurance required by this subparagraph (a);

(b) During the completion of the Improvements and in lieu of the insurance required in
subparagraph (a) of this Section, builder’s risk-completed value insurance insuring the
Improvements against fire, lightning and all other risks covered by the extended coverage
endorsement then in use in the State to the full insurable value of the Improvements (subject to
reasonable loss deductible clauses), but in no event will such amount be less than the amount
necessary to prevent the application of any co-insurance provisions, issued by such insurance
company or companies authorized to do business in the State as may be selected by the City. Such
policy or policies of insurance will name the City and the Bank as insureds and loss payees, and all
payments received under such policy or policies by the City will be paid over to the Bank;

S



(c) Comprehensive general accident and public liability insurance, under which the
City and the Bank are named as insureds, in an amount not less than the limitation on awards for
liability in effect from time to time under Section 537.610, RSMo.;

(d) Workers’ compensation and unemployment coverages to the extent, if any,
required by the laws of the State; and

(e) Labor and material payment bonds, to the extent required by law, with respect to
the contracts for the construction of the Improvements.

Not less than 15 days prior to the expiration dates of the expu ing policies, originals or copies of the
policies required by this Section or certificates evidencing such insurance will be delivered by the City to
the Bank. All policies of such insurance, and all renewals thereof, will contain a provision (if obtainable
from the chosen insurer) that such insurance may not be cancelled by the issuer thereof without at least ten
days written notice to the City and the Bank.

Nothing in this Lease Purchase Agreement will be construed as preventing the City from satisfying
the insurance requirements herein set forth by using blanket policies of insurance provided each and all of
the requirements and specifications of this Lease Purchase Agreement respecting insurance are complied
with.

Section 7.2.  Enforcement of Contract and Surety Bonds. In the event of material default of
any contractor or subcontractor under the Construction Contract or any other contract made in connection
with the completion of the Improvements, or in the event of a material breach of warranty with respect to
any materials, workmanship or performance, the City will promptly proceed, either separately or in
conjunction with others, to pursue diligently the remedies of the City against the contractor or subcontractor
in default and against each surety on any bond securing the performance of such contract. Any amounts
recovered by way of damages, refunds, adjustments or otherwise in connection with the foregoing, after
deduction of expenses incurred in such recovery and after reimbursement to the City of any amounts
theretofore paid by the City and not previously reimbursed to the City for correction or remedying of the
default which gave rise to the proceedings against the contractor, subcontractor or surety, will be held by the
City in a separate account and not commingled with other funds of the City and, if received before the
Completion Date, will be deposited in the Project Fund or, if received after the Completion Date, will be
appropriated solely for the purpose of paying Rental Payments under this Lease Purchase Agreement
(applied on a pro-rafa basis base on outstanding principal component, to the Tax-exempt Portion and the
Taxable Portion).

Section 7.3.  Release and Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the City will
indemnify, protect, hold harmless, save and keep the Bank harmless from and against any and all liability,
obligation, loss, claim, tax and damage whatsoever, regardless of cause thereof, and all expenses in
connection therewith (including counsel fees and expenses) arising out of or as the result of (a) the entering
into of the Base Lease or this Lease Purchase Agreement, (b) the process or completion of the
Improvements, (c) injury, actual or claimed, of whatsoever kind or character, to property or persons,
occurring or allegedly occurring in, on or about the Facilities during the Lease Term or otherwise arising
during the Lease Term because of the Bank’s interest in the Facilities, and/or (d) the breach of any covenant
by the City herein or any material misrepresentation by the City contained herein. The indemnification
arising under this section will continue in full force and effect notwithstanding the full payment of all
obligations under this Lease Purchase Agreement or the termination of this Lease Purchase Agreement for
any reason.

-12-



ARTICLE VIII
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASING

Section 8.1.  Assignment by the Bank. The Bank’s right, title and interest in, to and under this
Lease Purchase Agreement and the Facilities may be assigned and reassigned in whole or in part to one or
more assignees or subassignees by the Bank without the necessity of obtaining the consent of the City:
provided that any assignment will not be effective until the City has received written notice, signed by the
assignor, of the name, address and tax identification number of the assignee; and further provided that such
right, title and interest may only be assigned to: (i) an affiliate of the Bank; (ii) a “Bank” as defined in
Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended (the “Securities Act™); (iii) an “Accredited
Investor” as defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act; or (iv) a “Qualified Institutional Buyer” as
defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act. The City agrees to keep a record of all such notices of
assignment and to execute all documents, including notices of assignment and financing statements that may
be reasonably requested by the Bank or any assignee to protect its interests in the Facilities and in this Lease
Purchase Agreement. The City will not have the right to and will not assert against any assignee any claim,
counterclaim or other right the City may have against the Bank.

Section8.2.  Assignment and Subleasing by the City. None of the City’s right, title and
interest in, to and under this Lease Purchase Agreement and in the Facilities may be assigned or encumbered
by the City for any reason, except to the extent so assigned or encumbered by the Project Documents, and
except that the City may sublease all or part of the Facilities if the City obtains the prior written consent of
the Bank and an opinion of nationally recognized counsel in the area of tax-exempt obligations of state and
local governments satisfactory to the Bank that such subleasing will not adversely affect the exclusion of the
interest components of the Tax-exempt Portion of the Rental Payments from gross income for federal
income tax purposes. Any such sublease of all or part of the Facilities will be subject to this Lease Purchase
Agreement and the rights of the Bank in, to and under this Lease Purchase Agreement and the Facilities.
Notwithstanding anything in this Section to the contrary, the City will sublease on the Commencement
Date, and may continue to sublease to one or more tenants after the Commencement Date, the Private
Sublease Area, as set out on Exhibit E attached hereto, without complying with the provisions set out in this
section, provided that a copy of each such sublease is provided to the Bank within 30 days of the effective
date thereof. Any sublease of the Private Sublease Area may provide for non-exclusive use by the sublessee
of parking and common areas,

ARTICLE IX

MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS AND MODIFICATIONS

Section 9.1. Maintenance, Repairs and Modifications. The City will, at its own expense,
maintain, preserve and keep the Facilities in good repair, working order and condition, and will from time to
time make all repairs, replacements and improvements necessary to keep the Facilities in such condition.
The Bank has no responsibility for any repairs, replacements or improvements. In addition, the City will, at
its own expense, have the right to remodel any portion of the Improvements or to make additions,
modifications and improvements thereto. All such additions, modifications and improvements will
thereafter comprise part of the Facilities and be subject to the provisions of this Lease Purchase Agreement;
provided, however, that the City may install at its own expense any furniture, furnishings, trade fixtures and
business equipment and such furniture, furnishings, trade fixtures and business equipment (specifically
excluding lighting fixtures and heating, ventilating and air conditioning equipment and wiring within
conduits) will remain the property of the City and will not be subject to the provisions of this Lease
Purchase Agreement. Such additions, modifications and improvements will not in any way damage the

13-



Improvements nor cause it to be used for purposes other than those permitted by this Lease Purchase
Agreement and authorized under the provisions of municipal, state and federal law. The Facilities, upon
completion of any additions, modifications and improvements made pursuant to this Section, will be of a
value which is not substantially less than the value of the Facilities immediately prior to the making of such
additions, modifications and improvements. Any property for which a substitution or replacement is made
pursuant to this Section may be disposed of by the City in such manner and on such terms as are determined
by the City. The City will not permit any mechanic’s or other lien to be established or remain against the
Facilities for labor or materials furnished in connection with any remodeling, additions, modifications,
improvements, repairs, renewals or replacements made by the City pursuant to this Section; provided that if
any such lien is established and the City will first notify the Bank of the City’s intention to do so, the City
may in good faith contest any lien filed or established against the Facilities, and in such event may permit
the items so contested to remain undischarged and unsatisfied during the period of such contest and any
appeal therefrom unless the Bank will notify the City that, in the opinion of Counsel, by nonpayment of any
such item the interest of the Bank in the Facilities will be materially endangered or the Facilities or any part
thereof will be subject to loss or forfeiture, in which event the City will promptly pay and cause to be
satisfied and discharged all such unpaid items or provide the Bank with full security against any such loss or
forfeiture, in form satisfactory to the Bank. The Bank will cooperate fully with the City in any such contest,
upon request and at the expense of the City.

Section 9.2. Liens. The City will not, directly or indirectly, create, incur, assume or suffer to
exist any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim on or with respect to the Facilities, other
than the respective rights of the Bank and the City as herein and in the Base Lease provided. Except as
expressly provided in this Article, the City will promptly, at its own expense, take such action as may be
necessary to duly discharge or remove any such mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim if the
same will arise at any time. The City will reimburse the Bank for any expense incurred by it in order to
discharge or remove any such mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim.

ARTICLE X
OPTION TO PURCHASE THE FACILITIES

Section 10.1.  The City’s Option to Purchase the Facilities. The City has the option to purchase
the Bank’s interest in the Facilities, upon giving written notice to the Bank at least 30 days before the date of
purchase, at the following times and upon the following terms:

(a) On any Rental Payment Date, upon payment in full of the Rental Payments then
due hereunder plus then applicable Purchase Price set forth on Exhibit A; or

(b) On any other date (that is not a Rental Payment Date), upon payment in full of the
unpaid interest portion of Rental Payments accrued to the date set for purchase plus all remaining
principal portions of Rental Payments set forth on Exhibit A.

Section 10.2.  Determination of Fair Purchase Price. The City and the Bank hereby agree and
determine that the Rental Payments hereunder during the Original Term and any Renewal Term represent
the fair value of the use of the Facilities and that the amount required to exercise the City’s option to
purchase the Bank’s interest in the Facilities pursuant to Section 10.1 represents, as of the end of the
applicable Rental Payment Date, the fair purchase price of the Facilities. The City hereby determines that
the Rental Payments do not exceed a reasonable amount o as to place the City under an economic practical
compulsion to renew this Lease Purchase Agreement or to exercise its option to purchase the Facilities
hereunder. In making such determinations, the City and the Bank have given consideration to the Project

ks



Costs, the uses and purposes for which the Facilities will be employed by the City, the benefit to the City by
reason of the Improvements and the use and occupancy of the Facilities pursuant to the terms and provisions
of this Lease Purchase Agreement and the City’s option to purchase the Facilities. The City hereby
determines and declares that the Improvements and the leasing of the Facilities pursuant to this Lease
Purchase Agreement will result in Facilities of comparable quality and meeting the same requirements and
standards as would be necessary if the Improvements were performed by the City other than pursuant to this
Lease Purchase Agreement. The City hereby determines and declares that the Maximum Lease Term does
not exceed the useful life of the Improvements.

ARTICLE X1
DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION; USE OF NET PROCEEDS

Section 11.1. Damage, Destruction and Condemnation. Unless the City has exercised its
option to purchase the Facilities and terminate this Lease Purchase Agreement as provided in Article X, if
(i) any component of the Facilities is destroyed (in whole or in part) or is damaged by fire or other casualty
or (ii) title to or the temporary use of such component of the Facilities or the interest of the City or the Bank
in the component of the Facilities, is taken under the exercise of the power of eminent domain, or the threat
of such exercise, by any governmental body or by any person, firm or corporation acting under
governmental authority, the City will cause the Net Proceeds of any insurance or condemnation award or
any sale under threat of condemnation to be applied to the prompt replacement, repair, restoration,
modification or improvement of the Facilities by the City. Any balance of the Net Proceeds remaining after
such work has been completed will be held and appropriated by the City for the exclusive purpose of paying
Rental Payments under this Lease Purchase Agreement (applied on a pro-rata basis base on outstanding
principal component, to the Tax-exempt Portion and the Taxable Portion).

If the City determines that the replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the
Facilities is not economically feasible or in the best interest of the City, then, in lieu of making such
replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement and if permitted by law, the City will
promptly purchase the Facilities by paying the Purchase Price plus any accrued Rental Payments to the
Bank and such Net Proceeds will be applied by the City to such payment to the extent required for such
payment. Any balance of the Net Proceeds remaining after paying the Purchase Price plus any accrued
Rental Payments to the Bank will belong to the City.

Section 11.2.  Insufficiency of Net Proceeds. If the Net Proceeds are insufficient to pay in full
the cost of any repair, restoration, modification or improvement of any component of the Facilities in
accordance with Section 11.1, subject to appropriation of sufficient funds, the City will complete the work
and pay any cost in excess of the amount of the Net Proceeds, and the City agrees that if by reason of any
such insufficiency of the Net Proceeds the City will make any payments pursuant to the provisions in this
Section 11.2, the City will not be entitled to any reimbursement therefor from the Bank or to any reduction
in Rental Payments then due or thereafter coming due.

Section 11.3.  Cooperation of the Bank. The Bank will cooperate fully with the City, at the
expense of the City, in filing any proof of loss with respect to any insurance policy covering the events
described in Section 11.1 and in the prosecution or defense of any prospective or pending condemnation
proceeding with respect to the Facilities or any part thereof and will, to the extent it may lawfully do so,
permit the City to litigate in any proceeding resulting therefrom in the name of and on behalf of the Bank.
In no event will the Bank voluntarily settle, or consent to the settlement of, any proceedings arising out of
any insurance claim or any prospective or pending condemnation proceeding with respect to the Facilities or
any part thereof without the written consent of the City.

-15-



ARTICLE X1
DEFAULT PROVISIONS

Section 12.1.  Events of Default Defined. The following will be “Events of Default” under this
Lease Purchase Agreement, and the term “Events of Default” will mean, whenever it is used in this Lease
Purchase Agreement, any one or more of the following events:

(a) Failure by the City to pay any Rental Payment or other payment required to be paid
hereunder at the time specified herein;

(b) Failure by the City to observe and perform any covenant, condition or agreement
under any Project Document on its part to be observed or performed, other than as referred to in
clause (a) of this Section, for a period of 30 days after written notice specifying such failure and
requesting that it be remedied has been given to the City by the Bank; provided, however, if the
failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within the applicable period, the Bank will consent to
an extension of such time if the City certifies that corrective action has been instituted by the City
within the applicable period and will be diligently pursued until such failure is corrected;

(c) Any event of default has occurred and is continuing under the Lease that would
entitle the party then entitled to enforce the provisions of the Lease against the City to terminate the
City’s possession of the Site;

(d) Any statement, representation or warranty made by the City in or pursuant to any
Project Document or any instrument or certificate related thereto or to the Facilities is incorrect,
untrue or misleading in any material respect;

(e) Any provision of any Project Document at any time for any reason ceases to be
valid and binding on the City, or is declared to be null and void, or the validity or enforceability
thereof is contested by the City or any governmental agency or authority if the loss of such
provision would materially adversely affect the rights or security of the Bank, or the City denies that
it has any further liability or obligation under this Lease Purchase Agreement or the Base Lease; or

£9) The filing by the City of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or failure by the City
to promptly lift any execution, garnishment or attachment of such consequence as would impair the
ability of the City to carry on its essential functions, or adjudication of the City as a bankrupt, or
assignment by the City for the benefit of creditors, or the entry by the City into an agreement of
composition with creditors, or the approval by a court of competent jurisdiction of a petition
applicable to the City in any proceedings instituted under the provisions of any applicable federal
bankruptcy law.

Section 12.2. Remedies. Whenever any Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the
Bank will have the right, at its option and without any further demand or notice, to take any one or more of
the following remedial steps:

(a) By writien notice to the City, the Bank may declare all Rental Payments and other

amounts payable by the City hereunder to the end of the then current Original Term or Renewal
Term to be due;

-16-



(b) With or without terminating this Lease Purchase Agreement, take possession of the
Facilities, sell the Bank’s interest in the Base Lease, or lease the Facilities and collect the rentals
therefor for all or any portion of the remainder of its leasehold term upon such terms and conditions
as it may deem satisfactory in its sole discretion, with the City remaining liable for the difference
between the Rental Payments, Additional Rental and other amounts payable by the City hereunder
during the Original Term or then current Renewal Term, as the case may be, and the net proceeds of
any purchase price, rents or other amounts paid by the purchaser, new lessee or sublessee of the
Facilities, and, provided further, that, in such event, if the Bank receives a payment for sale of its
interest or total Rental Payments for lease of the Facilities that are, after payment of the Bank’s
expenses in connection therewith, in excess of then applicable Purchase Price plus any accrued
Rental Payments, then such excess will be paid to the City either by the Bank, its assigns, or by its
sublessee; or

(c) Take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to
collect the Rental Payments then due and thereafter to become due during then current Original
Term or Renewal Term, or enforce performance and observance of any obligation, agreement or
covenant of the City under this Lease Purchase Agreement.

Section 12.3.  No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Bank
is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy will be cumulative and will be in addition to every other
remedy given under this Lease Purchase Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No
delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default will impair any such right or
power or will be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time
to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the Bank or the City to exercise any
remedy reserved to it in this Article it will not be necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may
be required in this Article or by law.

Section 12.4. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event any agreement
contained in this Lease Purchase Agreement is breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other
party, such waiver will be limited to the particular breach so waived and will not be deemed to waive any
other breach hereunder.

ARTICLE XITI
AMENDMENTS, CHANGES AND MODIFICATIONS
Section 13.1.  Amendments, Changes and Modifications. This Lease Purchase Agreement
may be amended, changed or modified in any manner by written agreement of the Bank and the City. Any
waiver of any provision of this Lease Purchase Agreement or any right or remedy hereunder must be

affirmatively and expressly made in writing and will not be implied from inaction, course of dealing or
otherwise.

o



ARTICLE X1V
MISCELLANEOUS
Section 14.1.  Maintenance of Tax Exemption.

(a) The City will not take any action or fail to take any action which action or failure would
cause the interest components of the Tax-exempt Portion of Rental Payments under this Lease Purchase
Agreement to be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes.

(b) The City will comply with all applicable provisions of the Code, including Sections 103
and 148 thereof, and the regulations of the Treasury Department thereunder from time to time proposed or
in effect in order to maintain the exclusion from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation of the
interest components of the Tax-exempt Portion of Rental Payments under this Lease Purchase Agreement.

(c) The City will use the proceeds of this Lease Purchase Agreement as soon as practicable and
with all reasonable dispatch for the purpose for which this Lease Purchase Agreement has been executed
and delivered. No part of the proceeds of this Lease Purchase Agreement will be invested in any securities,
obligations or other investments or used, at any time, directly or indirectly, in a manner which would cause
this Lease Purchase Agreement to be or become an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of
the Code and the applicable regulations of the Treasury Department.

Section 14.2.  Notices. It will be sufficient service of any notice, request, complaint, demand or
other paper required by this Lease Purchase Agreement to be given or filed with the Bank or the City if the
same is duly mailed by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid addressed as set forth on Exhibit B.
The Bank and the City may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to which
subsequent notices, certificates or other communications will be sent.

Section 14.3.  Title to Personal Property. Title to any portion of the Facilities that constitutes
personal property will vest in the City subject to the Bank’s rights under this Lease Purchase Agreement and
the Base Lease; provided that title thereto will thereafter immediately and without any action by the City
vest in the Bank and the City will immediately surrender possession thereof to the Bank upon (i) any
termination of this Lease Purchase Agreement without the City exercising its option to purchase pursuant to
Section 10.1 or (ii) the occurrence of an Event of Default. It is the intent of the parties hereto that any
transfer of title to the Bank pursuant to this Section will occur automatically without the necessity of any
deed, bill of sale, certificate of title or other instrument of conveyance. Nevertheless, the City will execute
and deliver any such instruments as the Bank may request to evidence such transfer.

Section 14.4.  Security Interest. To secure the payment of all of the City’s obligations under this
Lease Purchase Agreement, to the extent permitted by law, the Bank retains a security interest in that
portion of the Facilities consisting of personal property or fixtures and on all additions, attachments,
accessions thereto, substitutions therefor and on any proceeds therefrom. The City consents to the filing of
financing statements with respect to such personal property and fixtures and will execute such additional
documents, including affidavits, notices and similar instruments, in form satisfactory to the Bank, which the
Bank deems necessary or appropriate to establish and maintain its security interest.

Section 14.5. Net Lease. It is the understanding and agreement of the parties hereto that, subject
to Sections 3.3 and 4.3, this is a clear “net” lease obligation and that the City will bear all expenses and
make all payments consistent with the principle of the “net” Lease. The City hereby assumes and agrees to
perform all duties and obligations relating to the Facilities, as well as the use, operation, and maintenance
thereof, even though such duties and obligations may otherwise be construed to be those of the Bank.

-18-



Section 14.6.  No Pecuniary Liability. No provision, covenant or agreement contained in this
Lease Purchase Agreement or any obligation herein imposed upon the Bank, or the breach thereof, will
constitute or give rise to or impose upon the Bank a pecuniary liability.

Section 14.7.  Access to Premises. The City agrees that the Bank or any agent or representative
of the Bank has the right at all reasonable times to enter upon and to examine and inspect the Facilities. The
City further agrees that the Bank and any such agent or representative has such rights of access to the
Facilities as may be reasonably necessary to cause the proper maintenance of the Improvements in the event
of failure by the City to perform its obligations hereunder.

Section 14.8.  Financial Statements. Throughout the Lease Term, the City will deliver to the
Bank, within 270 days after each Fiscal Year end, a copy of the City’s financial statements for such Fiscal
Year, or shall make the same available at such time on the City’s website or on htips:/emma.msrb.org,

Section 14.9.  Title to the Site. The City covenants that the title to the Site is and will remain in
the City, subject to the rights of the Bank hereunder and under the Base Lease and the rights of other parties
to the documents described in the recitals to the Base Lease.

Section 14.10. Binding Effect. This Lease Purchase Agreement will inure to the benefit of and
will be binding upon the Bank and the City and their respective successors and assigns.

Section 14.11. Execution; Electronic Transactions. This Lease Purchase Agreement may be
executed in any number of counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original but all together will
constitute but one and the same Lease. It is also agreed that separate counterparts of this Lease Purchase
Agreement may be executed by the Bank and the City all with the same force and effect as though the same
counterpart had been executed by both the Bank and the City. Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic
files and other reproductions of original executed documents will be deemed to be authentic and valid
counterparts of such original documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit
in the appropriate court of law. The parties agree that the transaction described herein may be conducted
and related documents may be stored by electronic means.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]

-19-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed these presents the day and year first
above written.

CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY,

as Lessor
By:
Name:
Title:
ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) S8,
COUNTY OF BOONE )
BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this day of 2021, before me, the
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, came , to me

personally known, who, being by me being before me duly sworn did say that (s)he is a
of CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY, a state banking corporation
formed under the laws of the State of Missouri, and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said
corporation by authority of its board of directors, and said official acknowledged said instrument to be
executed for the purposes therein stated and as the free act and deed of said corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and
year last above written.

Notary Public in and for said State
Commission Expires:
[Seal]

Lease Purchase Agreement

20



CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI, as Lessee

(SEAL)

By:

Name: Richard Sullivan

Title: Mayor
ATTEST:
Name: Darla Sapp
Title: City Clerk

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS.
COUNTY OF BOONE )
On this day of . 2021, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, appeared

RICHARD SULLIVAN, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the
MAYOR of the CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURLI, a fourth-class city and political subdivision duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing
instrument is the corporate seal of said City, and that said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf of
said City by authority of its Board of Aldermen, and said officer acknowledged said instrument to be
executed for the purposes therein stated and as the free act and deed of said City.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, the day
and year last above written.

Printed Name:
Notary Public in and for said State
Commissioned in County

[Seal]

Lease Purchase Agreement

21-



EXHIBIT A TO LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

RENTAL PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Commencement Date: April 30, 2021

Interest Rate (Tax-exempt Portion): 2.25%

Interest Rate (Taxable Portion): 3.00%

Basis of Accrual; 360 day year of twelve 30 day months

Rental Payment Dates: April 1 and October 1, beginning April 1, 2022

The interest portions and principal portions of Rental Payments shall be payable in accordance
with the schedules below, provided that the Rental Payments shown on the Rental Payment Schedule shall
be recalculated by the Bank and a revised Rental Payment Schedule shall be provided to the City from time
to time in the event of a partial prepayment of Rental Payments. The Purchase Price is equal to the
aggregate of the unpaid principal portions on the date set for purchase, taking into account a reduction for
any principal portion of Rental Payments paid as part of the Rental Payments due on the date set for
purchase if such date is also a Rental Payment Date,

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]



RENTAL PAYMENT SCHEDULE

TAX-EXEMPT PORTION

Rental Payment Principal Interest Total
Date Portion Portion Payment
04/01/2022 $24,441.68 $44,248.70 $68,690.38
10/01/2022 44,902.61 23,787.77 68,690.38
04/01/2023 45,407.77 23,282.61 68,690.38
10/01/2023 45,918.60 22,771.78 68,690.38
04/01/2024 46,435.19 22,255.19 68,690.38
10/01/2024 46,957.58 21,732.80 68,690.38
04/01/2025 47.485.86 21,204.52 68.690.38
10/01/2025 48,020.07 20,670.31 68,690.38
04/01/2026 48,560.30 20,130.08 68,690.38
10/01/2026 49,106.60 19,583.78 68,690.38
04/01/2027 49,659.05 19,031.33 68,690.38
10/01/2027 50,217.72 18,472.67 68,690.39
04/01/2028 50,782.67 17,907.72 68,690.39
10/01/2028 51,353.97 17,336.41 68.690.38
04/01/2029 51,931.70 16,758.68 68,690.38
10/01/2029 52,515.93 16,174.45 68,690.38
04/01/2030 53,106.74 15,583.64 68,690.38
10/01/2030 53,704.19 14,986.19 68,690.38
04/01/2031 54,308.36 14,382.02 68,690.38
10/01/2031 54,919.33 13,771.05 68,690.38
04/01/2032 55,537.17 13,153.21 68,690.38
10/01/2032 56,161.97 12,528.42 68,690.39
04/01/2033 56,793.79 11,896.59 68,690.38
10/01/2033 57.432.72 11,257.66 68,690.38
04/01/2034 58,078.84 10,611.54 68,690.38
10/01/2034 58,732.22 9,958.16 68,690.38
04/01/2035 59,392.96 0,297.42 68,690.38
10/01/2035 60,061.13 8,629.25 68,690.38
04/01/2036 60,736.82 7,953.56 68,690.38
10/01/2036 61,420.11 7.270.27 68,690.38
04/01/2037 62,111.09 6,579.30 68,690.39
10/01/2037 62,809.84 5,880.55 68,690.39
04/01/2038 63,516.45 5,173.94 68,690.39
10/01/2038 64,231.01 4,459.38 68.690.39
04/01/2039 64,953.60 3,736.78 68.690.38
10/01/2039 65,684.33 3,006.05 68,690.38
04/01/2040 66,423.28 2,267.10 68,690.38
10/01/2040 67.170.54 1,519.84 68,690.38
04/01/2041 67,926.21 764.17 68,690.38



RENTAL PAYMENT SCHEDULE

TAXABLE PORTION
Rental Payment Principal Interest Total
Date Portion Portion Payment
04/01/2022 $3,019.97 $12,083.98 $15,103.95
10/01/2022 8.577.90 6,526.05 15,103.95
04/01/2023 8,706.57 6,397.38 15,103.95
10/01/2023 8.837.17 6,266.78 15,103.95
04/01/2024 8.969.72 6,134.23 15,103.95
10/01/2024 0,104.27 5,999.68 15,103.95
04/01/2025 0,240.83 5,863.12 15,103.95
10/01/2025 9,379.45 5,724.50 15,103.95
04/01/2026 9,520.14 5,583.81 15,103.95
10/01/2026 0,662.94 5.441.01 15,103.95
04/01/2027 0,807.88 5.296.07 15,103.95
10/01/2027 9,955.00 5,148.95 15,103.95
04/01/2028 10,104.33 4,999.62 15,103.95
10/01/2028 10,255.89 4,848.06 15,103.95
04/01/2029 10,409.73 4,694.22 15,103.95
10/01/2029 10,565.88 4,538.07 15,103.95
04/01/2030 10,724.36 4,379.58 15,103.94
10/01/2030 10,885.23 4,218.72 15,103.95
04/01/2031 11,048.51 4,055.44 15,103.95
10/01/2031 11,214.23 3.889.71 15,103.94
04/01/2032 11,382.45 3,721.50 15,103,95
10/01/2032 11,553.19 3,550.76 15,103.95
04/01/2033 11,726.48 337747 15,103.95
10/01/2033 11,902.38 3,201.57 15,103.95
04/01/2034 12,080.92 3,023.03 15,103.95
10/01/2034 12,262.13 2,841.82 15,103.95
04/01/2035 12,446.06 2,657.89 15,103.95
10/01/2035 12,632.75 2,471.20 15,103.95
04/01/2036 12,822.24 2,281.70 15,103.94
10/01/2036 13,014.58 2,089.37 15,103.95
04/01/2037 13,209.80 1,894.15 15,103.95
10/01/2037 13.407.94 1,696.01 15,103.95
04/01/2038 13,609.06 1,494.89 15,103.95
10/01/2038 13.813.20 1,290.75 15,103.95
04/01/2039 14,020.40 1,083.55 15,103.95
10/01/2039 14,230.70 873.25 15,103.95
04/01/2040 14,444.16 659.79 15,103.95
10/01/2040 14,660.82 443,12 15,103.94
04/01/2041 14,880.74 223.2] 15,103.95



EXHIBIT B TO LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

OTHER PROVISIONS

Improvements: The Improvements consist of the following, together with related improvements, fixtures,
equipment and furnishings and support facilities, all at the Site:

I Exterior improvements, including but not limited to improvements to and replacements of roofing,
siding, windows, signage, lighting, walks, parking, landscaping and grading;

2. Interior improvements, including but not limited to improvements to and replacements of flooring,
walls, ceilings, doors and other openings, storefront, built-in cabinetry and ramps; and

3. Mechanical and electrical improvements, including but not limited to improvements to and
replacements of mechanical, electrical switching, natural gas electrical generation, plumbing, alarm
and data systems.

Facilities: All land and improvements consisting of and located on the Site.
Intended use of Facilities: Municipal offices with a portion subleased to private businesses.
Fiscal Year: The City’s Fiscal Year currently begins on May 1 of each year.

Addresses: The following addresses will be used as described in Section 14.2, unless changed as described
therein:

(a) If to the Bank: Central Bank of Boone County
P.O. Box 678
Columbia, MO 65205

(b) If to the City:  City of Ashland, Missouri
109 East Broadway
Ashland, MO 65010
Attention; City Clerk

B-1



EXHIBIT C TO LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

COMPLETION CERTIFICATE

Central Bank of Boone County
P.O. Box 678
Columbia, MO 65205

Re: Lease Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2021 (the “Lease Purchase Agreement™),
between Central Bank of Boone County and the City of Ashland, Missouri

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to the Lease Purchase Agreement, the undersigned hereby certify (a) all terms in this
certificate are used with the meanings used in said Lease Purchase Agreement, (b) the Improvements were
completed on __ - 20_, (c) all other facilities necessary in connection with the
Improvements have been completed, (d) the Improvements and such other facilities have been completed in
accordance with the Plans and Specifications and in conformance with all applicable zoning, planning,
building, environmental and other similar governmental regulations, and (e) all Project Costs have been
paid. This certificate is given without prejudice to any rights of City that now exist or may subsequently
come into being against third parties,

Date:

CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI

By:

City Representative

C-1



Request No. Date:

To:

EXHIBIT D TO LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

WRITTEN REQUEST FOR DISBURSEMENT FROM
PROJECT FUND

Central Bank of Boone County
P.O. Box 678
Columbia, MO 65205

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Section 5.2 of the Lease Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2021 (the “Lease

Purchase Agreement”), between Central Bank of Boone County (the “Bank™), and the City of Ashland,
Missouri (the “City™), the City hereby requests payment in accordance with this request and said Section
and hereby states and certifies as follows:

The undersigned hereby requests that a total of § be paid for Project Costs (as

defined in the Lease Purchase Agreement) in such amounts, to such payees and for such purposes as set
forth on Attachment I attached hereto.

We hereby state and certify that:

(i) the amounts requested are or were necessary and appropriate in connection with
the acquisition of the Site or the purchase, construction and installation of the Improvements,
have been properly incurred and are a proper charge against the Project Fund, and have been paid,
or are justly due to the persons whose names and addresses are stated herein, and have not been
the basis of any previous requisition from the Project Fund;

(ii) as of this date, except for the amounts specified above, there are no outstanding
statements which are due and payable for labor, wages, materials, supplies or services in
connection with the purchase, construction and installation of the Improvements which, if unpaid,
might become the basis of a vendors’, mechanics’, laborers® or materialmen’s statutory or similar
lien upon the Facilities or any part thereof;

(iii)  no part of the several amounts paid or due as stated above has been or is being
made the basis for the withdrawal of any moneys from the Project Fund in any previous or
pending application for payment made pursuant to the Lease Purchase Agreement;

(iv) all work has been performed in a good and workmanlike manner; and

(v) no defaults have occurred and are continuing under the Lease Purchase
Agreement.

CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI

By:

City Representative



ATTACHMENT I

TO WRITTEN REQUEST FOR DISBURSEMENT

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS REQUESTED

Pavee and Address Amount Description

D-2



EXHIBIT E TO LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

PRIVATE SUBLEASE AREA

)
Geoth ‘.I'-"‘.‘.‘.-- v f
e E‘u‘ ' 2 e 1' '-II
e i ; e | B |
0 e ST R
j:jn.q ; ‘ *J W it ;: ' TL’: ifTII%'f”J. Private
il e AEH Sublease Area
e bl el e 8 “| ‘ :
= i " — i e o - HE U - -

— — = =
L] IS

_ )= FLOOR PLAN - Medified for City of Ashland
| '

SCAE, AT e




SCHEDULE 1 TO BASE LEASE AND TO LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT
DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

Lot Two (2) of McKinney Subdivision in the City of Ashland, Boone County, Missouri, as shown by the
plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 46, Page 11, Records of Boone County, Missouri.



TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

RELATING TO A

$2,577,000
LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT
dated as of April 30, 2021
between

CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY,
as Lessor

and

CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI,
as Lessee

The issuance consists of a $2,138,910 Tax-exempt Portion and a
$438,090 Taxable Portion, as described in the Lease Purchase
Agreement,

Legal Opinion:
Gilmore & Bell, P.C.



LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Closing: April 30, 2021

LIST OF DOCUMENTS
Document
No.
A. Basic Documents
l. Base Lease
2. Lease Purchase Agreement.
8 Federal Tax Certificate, with form 8038-G attached.
4, Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement.
5, Assignment and Assumption Agreement; Sublease.
B. City Documents
6. City’s Closing Certificate, with the following items attached:
A. Excerpt of minutes of the meeting of the Board of Aldermen; Notice of Meeting.

B. Ordinance.

C. Other Closing Certificates
Fe Bank’s Closing Certificate.

D.  Legal Opinion

8. Opinion of Special Counsel
E. Miscellaneous

0. UCC Financing Statements

A. Filed with Recorder of Deeds
B. Filed with Secretary of State

10. Title Report.

1. Termination of YMCA Lease.



CITY’S CLOSING CERTIFICATE
Dated: April 30, 2021

We, the Mayor and City Clerk, duly elected or appointed, qualified and acting as such, of the City
of Ashland, Missouri (the “City”), do hereby certify as follows:

Capitalized words and terms used in this Certificate, unless the context requires otherwise, will
have the same meanings as set forth in the Lease Purchase Agreement dated as of April 30, 2021 (the
“Lease Purchase Agreement”), between Central Bank of Boone County (the “Bank”), and the City of
Ashland, Missouri (the "City”),

1. Transcript. The documents listed on the closing list included in this transcript constitute
a full, true and correct transcript of all documents and proceedings in connection with the execution and
delivery by the City of the hereinafter defined City Documents.

2. Meeting. Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of minutes or excerpts from minutes of
a lawful meeting of the Board of Aldermen held on April 6, 2021, at which meeting a quorum was present
and acting throughout, and said minutes or excerpts remain in full force and effect. Said meeting was a
regular meeting, for which proper notice was given in the manner required by law. Artached hereto is a true
and correct copy of the notice that was posted for the meeting.

. 3 Ordinance. Attached hereto is a full, true and correct copy of the ordinance authorizing
the hereinafier defined City Documents and adopted by the Board of Aldermen at said meeting (the
“Ordinance™). Said Ordinance has not been amended and is in full force and effect, and the Board of
Aldermen has, and at the time of the adoption of said Ordinance had, full power and lawful authority to
adopt said Ordinance and to confer the powers thereby granted to the officers therein named, who have full
power and lawful authority to exercise the same.

4. Authorization, Execution and Delivery of Documents. The following documents (the
“City Documents”™) have been duly authorized, executed and delivered in the name and on behalf of the City
by the its duly authorized officers, pursuant to and in full compliance with the Ordinance; the copies of said
documents contained in the transcript of proceedings relating to the authorization and delivery of the Lease
Purchase Agreement are true, complete and correct copies or counterparts of said documents as authorized,
executed and delivered by the City, and are in substantially the same forms submitted to and approved by
the Board of Aldermen of the City at the meeting described in paragraph 2 of this Certificate with only such
changes therein as have been approved by the officer of the City executing the same; and said documents
have not been amended, modified or rescinded in any manner and are in full force and effect on the date
hereof:

(a) Base Lease
(b) Lease Purchase Agreement
(c) Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement

(d) Assignment and Assumption Agreement

.8 Compliance with Documents. The City has performed and complied with all the
agreements and satisfied all the conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the date
hereof contained in the City Documents.



6. Incumbency. The following persons were and are now the duly qualified and acting
members of the Board of Aldermen of the City at and during all times during the proceedings relating to
the authorization of the City Documents, except as specified below:

Name Title
Richard Sullivan Mayor
Bryan Bradford Alderman (Ward 1)
Nathan Volkart Alderman (Ward 1)
Stephanie Bell Alderman (Ward 2)
Melissa Old Alderman (Ward 2)
Rick Lewis Alderman (Ward 3)
Jeffrey Sapp Alderman (Ward 3)
Darla Sapp City Clerk

7 Representations and Warranties.

(a) The representations and warranties of the City contained in the City Documents are true

and correct on and as of the date hereof, All representations and warranties in the City Documents, as well
as those made herein, will be deemed to be for the benefit of Central Bank of Boone County, and the
attorneys providing legal opinions in connection with the Lease Purchase Agreement.

(b) The City has complied with and satisfied all the conditions on its part to be performed or
satisfied under the City Documents at or prior to the date of this Certificate.

(c) The City has sought and obtained financial, legal, tax and accounting and other advice (as
it relates to structure, timing, terms and similar matters) with respect to the City Documents from its
financial, legal and other advisors (and not from Central Bank of Boone County) to the extent that the
City desired to obtain such advice.

8. Insurance. The City maintains the insurance required by Section 7.1 of the Lease
Purchase Agreement.

9. No Default. No condition or event exists that constitutes, or with the giving of notice or
the passage of time or both would constitute, an Event of Default under the City Documents.

10. No Pecuniary Interest. To the City’s knowledge, no member of the Board of Aldermen
of the City has any pecuniary interest, directly or indirectly, in any contract, employment, purchase or sale
made, or to be made in connection with the proposed transaction contemplated in the City Documents.

11. No Violation or Event of Default. To the City’s knowledge, the City’s execution and
delivery of the City Documents and the performance of the terms thereof by the City will not violate any
provision of law, or any ordinance or resolution of the City, or any applicable judgment, order, rule or
regulation, of any court or any public or governmental agency or authority, and will not conflict with,
violate or result in the breach of any of the provisions of or constitute a default under, any indenture,
mortgage or other agreement or instrument to which the City is a party or by which it or its properties are
bound. As of the date hereof, no event exists which, with the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both,
would become a default under the City Documents.

-



12. Litigation. No litigation or other proceedings are pending or, to the knowledge of the
undersigned, threatened in any court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction, state or federal, (a) in any
way questioning or affecting the validity of the City Documents or the completion of the Improvements (as
defined in the Lease Purchase Agreement), (b) in any way questioning or affecting the organization or
existence of the City of the title to office of the officers thereof, or (¢) that could have a material adverse
effect on (1) the financial condition or operations of the City, or (2) the City’s ability to make payments
under the Lease Purchase Agreement or to perform its agreements and obligations under the City
Documents.

13. ML.A.P. Filing Authorization. The City hereby authorizes Gilmore & Bell, P.C. to file the
information required by Section 37.850 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri on the Missouri Accountability
Portal website maintained by the State of Missouri Office of Administration.

Mayor
[SEAL]

ATTEST:

City Clerk

City’s Closing Certificate



NOTICE OF MEETING - SUGGESTED LANGUAGE

An Ordinance authorizing the City to enter into a lease purchase transaction, the proceeds of
which will be used to pay the costs of acquiring and improving a building for the City.



EXCERPT OF MINUTES OF MEETING
The Board of Aldermen of the City of Ashland, Missouri, met in regular session on April 6, 2021, at
7:00 P.M., at City Hall in Ashland, Missouri, the following officers being present or absent as indicated:
Present/Absent
Richard Sullivan
Bryan Bradford
Nathan Volkart
Stephanie Bell
Melissa Old
Rick Lewis

Jeffrey Sapp

Darla Sapp

The Mayor declared that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order.
* oK ok W H %
(Other Proceedings)

The matter of authorizing the City to enter into lease purchase transaction with Central Bank of
Boone County (the “Bank’) came on for consideration and was discussed.

introduced Bill No. , being for an ordinance entitled as

follows:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI TO
ENTER INTO A LEASE PURCHASE TRANSACTION FOR THE PURPOSE OF
FINANCING THE ACQUISITION AND IMPROVEMENT OF A BUILDING; AND
AUTHORIZING CERTAIN DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH.

On motion duly made and seconded, the Bill was placed on its first reading and was read by title,
considered and discussed, and was duly passed.

On motion duly made and seconded, the Bill was placed upon its second reading and final
passage and was read by title, considered and discussed. Thereupon, the question was put to a roll call
vote, and the vote thereon was as follows:



Aye:

Nay:

The Mayor declared said Bill duly passed and the Bill was then duly numbered Ordinance No.
. and was signed and approved by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk.

L A
(Other Proceedings)

There being no further business to come before the meeting at this time, upon motion duly made,
seconded and carried, the meeting was adjourned.

(Seal) City Clerk



BANK'S CLOSING CERTIFICATE

Dated: April 30, 2021

The undersigned, CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY (the “Bank”), does hereby certify
as follows:

Capitalized words and terms used in this Certificate, unless the context requires otherwise, will
have the same meanings as set forth in the Lease Purchase Agreement dated as of April 30, 2021 (the
“Lease Purchase Agreement”), between the Bank and the City of Ashland, Missouri (the “City").

1. Power and Authority of the Bank. The Bank is a state banking corporation formed under
the laws of the State of Missouri, is authorized and empowered to execute and deliver the Base Lease, the
Lease Purchase Agreement and the Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement
(collectively, the “Bank Documents™) and has full power and authority to act as provided in the Bank
Documents.

2. Execution of the Bank Documents. The Bank Documents have been duly executed and
attested on behalf of the Bank, by persons properly authorized, and each of said persons was at the time of
the execution of the Bank Documents and now is the duly elected or appointed, qualified and acting
incumbent of his respective office, and the signatures of said persons appearing herein are the true and
genuine signatures, respectively, of such officers.

3. Deposit of Proceeds. The Bank on this date, in accordance with the requirements of the
Bank Documents, advanced $2,577,000 ($2,138.910 for the Tax-exempt Portion and $438.090 for the
Taxable Portion) for the benefit of the City by depositing such funds into the Project Fund established under
the Lease Purchase Agreement.

4, No Litigation. There is no litigation or administrative action pending or threatened to
restrain or enjoin the Bank from acting under the Bank Documents or performing actions required by the
terms thereof or any other documents related or incidental to its duties thereunder.

& Investment Purposes. The Bank is acquiring the investment in the Lease Purchase
Agreement at a purchase price of 100% thereof for the Bank’s own account with the intent of holding the
Lease Purchase Agreement for its own account as an investment, and such investment is not made with a
view toward distribution or for the purpose of offering, selling or otherwise participating in a distribution of
any interest in the Lease Purchase Agreement.

6. Due Diligence. The Bank has made inquiries satisfactory to it concerning the amount of
financing required and the various uses for which proceeds of the Lease Purchase Agreement may be
expended. The Bank understands that no official statement, prospectus, offering circular or other
comprehensive offering statement containing material information with respect to the Lease Purchase
Agreement, the facilities financed thereby, or the City is being issued, and that, in due diligence, it has made
its own inquiry and analysis with respect to the Lease Purchase Agreement and the security therefor, the
facilities being financed, the City and other material factors affecting the security for and payment pursuant
to the Lease Agreement. Representatives of the Bank have reviewed the recitals contained in the Base
Lease and have been provided any documents described therein that were requested by the Bank. The Bank
has not relied on (1) preliminary indications of such rights and priorities provided in any request for



proposals circulated by the City, (2) any statements made by officials or employees of the City, or (3) any
communications with Special Counsel in establishing its understanding of the transaction.

7. Financial Information. The City has (i) furnished to the Bank such financial and other
information, including copies of all documents referred to above, as the Bank deems necessary in order to
make an informed investment decision with respect to the Lease Purchase Agreement, (ii) made available to
the Bank, during the course of this transaction, ample opportunity to ask questions of, and to receive
answers from, appropriate officials of the City and the terms and conditions of the Lease Purchase
Agreement, and (iii) provided to the Bank all additional information which the Bank has requested. The
Bank has sufficient knowledge and experience in financial and business matters, including purchase and
ownership of municipal and other tax-exempt obligations, to be able to evaluate the risks and merits of the
investment represented by the Lease Purchase Agreement.

8. Securities Laws. The Bank understands that the Lease Purchase Agreement (i) is not
registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or registered or otherwise qualified for sale under the “Blue Sky”
laws and regulations of any state, (ii) is not listed on any stock or other securities exchange, and (iii) carries
no rating from any rating service.

9. Representations in the Bank Documents. Each of the representations of the Bank made
in the Bank Documents are true and complete in all material respects as of the date hereof as if made on and
as of the date hereof, and all agreements to be complied with and obligations to be performed by the Bank
under the Bank Documents on or prior to the date hereof have been complied with and performed.

10. No Event of Default. At the date hereof, no Event of Default of the Bank specified in the
Bank Documents, and no event which, with the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both, would become
such an Event of Default of the Bank under the Bank Documents, has occurred,

11. Anti-Discrimination Against Israel Certification. The Bank hereby certifies and agrees
that, to the extent that the “Anti-discrimination Against Israel Act,” Section 34.600, Revised Statutes of
Missouri (the “Israel Act”), is applicable to any contract entered into with the City of Ashland, Missouri (the
“City”) including or in connection with the Bank Documents, the Bank is not currently engaged in and shall
not, for the duration of such contract, engage in a boycott of goods or services from the State of Israel
(“Israel™), companies doing business in or with Israel or authorized by, licensed by or organized under the
laws of Israel or persons or entities doing business with Israel, in all respects within the meaning of the
Israel Act. The foregoing certification shall not be deemed an admission or agreement that the Israel Act is
applicable to the aforesaid contracts but the foregoing certification is enforceable if the Israel Act is
applicable. If the Israel Act is determined not to apply to the applicable contract for any reason including the
repeal or amendment of the Israel Act or any ruling of a court of competent jurisdiction as to the
unenforceability or invalidity of the Israel Act, then the certification shall be of no effect.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]



CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY

By
Name:
Title:

Bank’s Closing Certificate



[OPINION OF SPECIAL COUNSEL)

April 30, 2021

City of Ashland, Missouri
Ashland, Missouri

Central Bank of Boone County
Columbia, Missouri

Re: Lease Purchase Agreement dated as of April 30, 2021 (the “Lease Purchase Agreement”),
between Central Bank of Boone County, as lessor (the “Bank”), and the City of Ashland,
Missouri (the “City™), as lessee

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as special counsel to the City in connection with the Lease Purchase Agreement
referred to above. Under the Lease Purchase Agreement, the City has an option to purchase certain property
on certain conditions upon payment of the rentals and purchase price set forth therein. Capitalized terms
used and not otherwise defined in this opinion have the meanings assigned in the Lease Purchase
Agreement.

We have reviewed executed copies of the Lease Purchase Agreement, the Base Lease, and the
Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement (collectively, the “City Documents”), and, in
addition, we have reviewed and considered the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™),
and the applicable regulations thereunder promulgated by the United States Treasury Department.

In rendering the opinions set forth herein, we have assumed without undertaking to investigate
the same by independent investigation or research (a) as to questions of fact, the accuracy of all
representations in the City Documents and in all certificates of officials of the Bank, the City and others
examined by us, and (b) the conformity to original documents of all documents submitted to us as copies
and the authenticity of such original documents and all documents submitted to us as originals.

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows:

1. Each of the City Documents has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the City
and constitutes a legal, valid and binding agreement of the City, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

2 The interest portion of the Tax-exempt Portion of the Rental Payments to be paid under
the Lease Purchase Agreement (i) is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, (ii) is
exempt from income taxation by the State of Missouri, and (iii) is not an item of tax preference for
purposes of computing the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations.



The opinions set forth in this paragraph are subject to the condition that the City complies with all
requirements of the Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Lease Purchase
Agreement in order that interest portion of the Tax-exempt Portion of Rental Payments be, or continue to
be, excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The City has covenanted to comply
with all of these requirements. Failure to comply with certain of these requirements may cause the
interest component of the Tax-exempt Portion of Rental Payments to be included in gross income for
federal and Missouri income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Lease Purchase
Agreement. The of the Tax-exempt Portion of the Lease Purchase Agreement is a “qualified tax-exempt
obligation” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

We express no opinion regarding (a) other federal or Missouri tax consequences arising with
respect to the Rental Payments, (b) the treatment for federal or Missouri income tax purposes of any
money received by the Bank or its assigns other than payments by the City made pursuant to the Lease
Purchase Agreement upon an Event of Nonappropriation or an Event of Default, (c) the title to or the
description of the property subject to the Lease Purchase Agreement and the Base Lease, or (d) the
accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of any offering material relating to the Lease Purchase Agreement
and the Base Lease.

The enforceability of the City Documents may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter
enacted to the extent applicable and their enforcement may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion
in appropriate cases.

This opinion is given as of its date, and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement this
opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may come to our attention or any changes in law that
may oceur after the date of this opinion.

Very truly yours,



Request No. 1 Date: April 30, 2021

WRITTEN REQUEST FOR DISBURSEMENT FROM
PROJECT FUND

To: Central Bank of Boone County
P.O. Box 678
Columbia, MO 65205

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Section 5.2 of the Lease Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2021 (the “Lease
Purchase Agreement™), between Central Bank of Boone County (the “Bank™), and the City of Ashland,
Missouri (the “City™), the City hereby requests payment in accordance with this request and said Section
and hereby states and certifies as follows:

The undersigned hereby requests that the total shown on Attachment 1 be paid for Project Costs
(as defined in the Lease Purchase Agreement) in such amounts, to such payees and for such purposes as
set forth on Attachment I attached hereto.

We hereby state and certify that:

(i) the amounts requested are or were necessary and appropriate in connection with
the acquisition of the Site or the purchase, construction and installation of the Improvements,
have been properly incurred and are a proper charge against the Project Fund, and have been paid,
or are justly due to the persons whose names and addresses are stated herein, and have not been
the basis of any previous requisition from the Project Fund;

(i) as of this date, except for the amounts specified above, there are no outstanding
statements which are due and payable for labor, wages, materials, supplies or services in
connection with the purchase, construction and installation of the Improvements which, if unpaid,
might become the basis of a vendors’, mechanics’, laborers’ or materialmen’s statutory or similar
lien upon the Facilities or any part thereof;

(iii)  no part of the several amounts paid or due as stated above has been or is being
made the basis for the withdrawal of any moneys from the Project Fund in any previous or
pending application for payment made pursuant to the Lease Purchase Agreement;

(iv)  all work has been performed in a good and workmanlike manner; and

v) no defaults have occurred and are continuing under the Lease Purchase
Agreement.

CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI

By:

City Representative



ATTACHMENT I

TO WRITTEN REQUEST FOR DISBURSEMENT

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS REQUESTED

Payee and Address *

Boone-Central Title Company
Gilmore & Bell, P.C.
D.A. Davidson & Co.

Boone-Central Title Company

* See attached invoices for addresses.

Amount

21,000.00

Description

Sale price of the Site
Special Counsel fee
Placement Agent fee

Title report fee



UCC INFORMATION

Filed with Secretary of State of the State of Missouri and recorded with Cass County MO recorder of
deeds.

Debtor: City of Ashland, Missouri
109 East Broadway
Ashland, MO 65010

Secured Party: Central Bank of Boone County
P.O. Box 678

Columbia, MO 65205
Collateral:

ALL ASSETS COVERED BY THAT CERTAIN LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED
AS OF APRIL 30, 2021 BETWEEN DEBTOR AND SECURED PARTY, AS AMENDED
FROM TIME TO TIME, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION FIXTURES AND
EQUIPMENT AND PRODUCTS AND PROCEEDS THEREOF.



ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT (the “Assignment”), dated as of
April 30, 2021 (the “Effective Date”), is between MCKINNEY PROPERTIES, L.L.C., a limited liability
company organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri (the “Assignor”), and the CITY
OF ASHLAND, MISSOURL, a fourth-class city and political subdivision of the State of Missouri (the
“Assignee” or “City™);

RECITALS:

1; The Assignor has entered into a document entitled “The Callaway Bank - McKinney
Properties LEASE” dated June 11, 2019 (the “Lease of Space™) as a lease of space within a building located
at 101 West Broadway, Ashland, MO 65010 (the “Building™), with The Callaway Bank, a state banking
corporation formed under the laws of the State of Missouri (the “Tenant™), as the tenant.

2. The Building is located on certain real property described on Exhibit A hereto (the “Site™).

3 On the date hereof, the Assignor will convey fee title to the Site and the Building to the
City.

4. The Assignor now desires to assign to the City all rights of the Assignor under the Lease

of Space, provided that the City shall assume all duties, liabilities and obligations of the Assignor under the
Lease of Space arising on and after the Effective Date.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual representations, covenants
and agreements contained herein, the Assignor and City do represent, covenant and agree as follows:

L. Assignment. The Assignor hereby assigns to the City all rights of the Assignor under the
Lease of Space, effective as of the Effective Date.

2. Assumption. The City hereby assumes all duties, liabilities and obligations of the Assignor
under the Lease of Space arising on and after the Effective Date.

3. Security Deposits, Other Funds. Any security deposits or other amounts held by the
Assignor as prepayments by the Tenant shall be transferred to the City within 5 business days of the Effective
Date.

4. Payment Address. From and after the effective date, payments under the Lease of Space
shall be made to the City at:

City of Ashland, Missouri
109 East Broadway
Ashland, MO 65010
Attention: City Clerk

5 Severability. If any provision of this Assignment shall be held or deemed to be invalid,
inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or jurisdictions or in all
Jurisdictions, or in all cases because it conflicts with any other provision or provisions hereof or any
constitution or statute or rule of public policy, or for any other reason, such circumstances shall not have
the effect of rendering the provision in question inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or



circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions herein contained invalid, inoperative or
unenforceable to any extent whatever.

6. Execution in Counterparts. This Assignment may be executed in several counterparts,
each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

7. Governing Law. This Assignment shall be governed exclusively by and construed in
accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Missouri.

8. Electronic Storage. The parties agree that the transaction described herein may be
conducted and related documents may be sent, received or stored by electronic means. Copies, telecopies,
facsimiles, electronic files and other reproductions of original executed documents shall be deemed to be
authentic and valid counterparts of such original documents for all purposes, including the filing of any
claim, action or suit in the appropriate court of law.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Assignment and Assumption
Agreement to be executed in their respective corporate names, all as of the date first above written.

MCKINNEY PROPERTIES, L.L.C.,
a Missouri limited liability company
as Assignor

By:

Gerald McKinney, Member/Manager

Assignment and Assumption Agreement — 101 West Broadway, Ashland, MO

D



CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI, as Assignee

(SEAL)
By:
Name: Richard Sullivan
Title: Mayor
ATTEST:

Name: Darla Sapp
Title: City Clerk

Assignment and Assumption Agreement — 101 West Broadway, Ashland, MO

B



The Callaway Bank, a state banking corporation formed under the laws of the State of
Missouri, as the tenant under the Lease of Space described in the foregoing Assignment and
Assumption Agreement (the “Assignment”) hereby acknowleges and consents to the Assignment and
hereby attorns to the City as the landlord under the Lease of Space from and after the Effective Date

described in the Assignment.

THE CALLAWAY BANK, as Tenant

By:
Name:
Title:

Assighment and Assumption Agreement — 101 West Broadway, Ashland, MO



EXHIBIT A

SITE

Lot Two (2) of McKinney Subdivision in the City of Ashland, Boone County, Missouri, as shown by the
plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 46, Page 11, Records of Boone County, Missouri.



Space Above Line Reserved for Recorder's Use

TITLE OF DOCUMENT:

DATE OF DOCUMENT:

GRANTORS:

GRANTEES:

LEGAL
DESCRIPTION:

REFERENCE
BOOK AND
PAGE:

SUBORDINATION, NON-DISTURBANCE AND
ATTORNMENT AGREEMENT

As of April 30, 2021

The Callaway Bank; City of Ashland, Missouri; Central Bank of Boone
County

The Callaway Bank City of Ashland, Missouri
101 West Broadway 109 East Broadway
Ashland, MO 65010 Ashland, MO 65010

Central Bank of Boone County
P.O. Box 678
Columbia, MO 65205

See Exhibit A attached hereto.

Base Lease: Book , Page
Lease Purchase Agreement: Book , Page



SUBORDINATION, NON-DISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT AGREEMENT

THIS SUBORDINATION, NON-DISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT AGREEMENT (this
“Agreement”) is entered into by and among THE CALLAWAY BANK, a state banking corporation formed
under the laws of the State of Missouri (the “Tenant™), the CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI (the “City™),
and CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY, a state banking corporation formed under the laws of the
State of Missouri, as lessee under the Base Lease defined herein (together with its successors in interest
under the Base Lease, the “Lender”).

This Agreement is entered into with reference to the following facts:

A,

The City has acquired and owns on the date of this Agreement the property legally
described on Exhibit A hereto (together with all improvements located thereon, the “Site™)
upon which a building known as 101 West Broadway, Ashland, MO 65010 (the
“Building™) is located.

The City has assumed the rights and obligations of landlord under the “The Cal laway Bank
- McKinney Properties LEASE” dated June 11, 2019 (the “Lease of Space™), pursuant to
which a portion of the Building, consisting of approximately 1,560 square feet of space
depicted on Exhibit B hereto as the “Private Sublease Area,” together with access to
parking and common areas (collectively, the “Tenant Leased Property™).

In connection with the acquisition of the Site and certain improvements to be made to the
Building, the City is entering into (1) a Base Lease with the Lender pursuant to which the
City leases the Site to the Lender (as amended and supplemented, the “Financing Base
Lease™), and (2) a Lease Purchase Agreement with the Lender pursuant to which the Lender
leases the same property back to the City for the term of repayment of the amounts loaned
(as amended and supplemented, the “Financing Lease Agreement,” and together with the
Financing Base Lease, the “Financing Leases™). In order to entice the Lender to enter into
this arrangement, the Lease of Space must be subordinated to the lien of the Financing
Leases.

For the purpose of facilitating the financing arrangement described above, the parties
hereto desire to expressly acknowledge the subordination of the Lease of Space to the
Financing Leases.

The Tenant has requested that the Lender agree not to disturb the Tenant’s possessory
rights in the Tenant Leased Property in the event the Lender should exercise enforcement
rights under the Financing Leases; provided that the Tenant is not then in default under the
Lease of Space and provided further that the Tenant attorns to the Lender or any transferee
of the Lender’s interests in the Tenant Leased Property pursuant to the Financing Leases.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and of other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree

as follows:

-1-



Subordination. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Lease of Space,
the Tenant hereby acknowledges that the Lease of Space and the leasehold estate and other
interests created thereby and all of Tenant’s rights thereunder are and shall be and shall at
all times remain subject, subordinate and inferior to the Financing Leases and the lien
thereof, and all rights of the Lender thereunder and to any and all renewals, modifications,
consolidations, replacements and extensions thereof.

Acknowledgement and Agreement by Tenant. The Tenant acknowledges that:

(a)
(b)

(d)

(e)

(f)

This Agreement is important to the security provided by the Financing Leases.

The Tenant consents to and approves the execution by the City of the Financing
Leases.

From and afier receipt by the Tenant of a Lender Remedies Notice (defined below),
in the event of any act or omission by the City which would give the Tenant the
right, either immediately or after the lapse of time, to terminate the Lease of Space
or to claim a partial or total eviction, the Tenant will not exercise any such right
until:

(i) it has given written notice of such act or omission to the Lender; and

(ii) the same period of time as is given to the City under the Lease of Space to
cure such act or omission shall have elapsed following such giving of
notice to the Lender and following the time when the Lender shall have
become entitled under the Financing Leases to remedy the same.

In the event that Lender notifies the Tenant that the Lender has taken possession
of the Site due to a default by the City under the Financing Leases (a “Lender
Remedies Notice™) and demands that the Tenant pay its rent and/or perform its
other obligations under the Lease of Space to and for the benefit of the Lender, the
Tenant shall honor such demand and pay its rent and all other sums due under the
Lease of Space directly to Lender or as otherwise required pursuant to such notice.

After receipt of a Lender Remedies Notice, the Tenant shall send a copy of any
notice or statement under the Lease of Space to the Lender at the same time such
notice or statement is sent to the City.

The Tenant has no right or option of any nature, whatsoever, whether pursuant to
the Lease of Space, or otherwise, to purchase the Tenant Leased Property, or any
portion thereof or any interest therein, and to the extent that the Tenant has had, or
hereafter acquires, any such right or option, the same is hereby acknowledged to
be subject and subordinate to the Financing Leases and is hereby waived and
released as against the Lender,

Exercise of Remedies by the Lender. In the event that the Lender exercises enforcement
remedies under the Financing Leases due to a default by the City thereunder, whether upon
a transfer of the Lender’s rights in Site or the Lender taking possession of the Site (with or
without the termination of the Financing Lease Agreement) pursuant to the Financing

-2



Leases, then:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Non-Disturbance. So long as the Tenant complies with this Agreement and is not
in default under any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of the Lease of Space,
the Lease of Space shall continue in full force and effect as a direct lease between
the holder of the Lender’s interest (or subleased part thereof) in the Tenant Leased
Property and the Tenant, upon and subject to all of the terms, covenants and
conditions of the Lease of Space, except as described herein, for the balance of the
current term of the Lease of Space. The Tenant hereby agrees to adhere to and
accept any such successor in interest as landlord under the Lease of Space, and to
be bound by and perform all of the obligations imposed by the Lease of Space, and
Lender, or any such successor in interest, will not disturb the possession of the
Tenant of the Tenant Leased Property, and will be bound by all of the obligations
imposed on the City by the Lease of Space; provided, however, that Lender, or any
such successor in interest shall not be:

(1) liable for any act or omission of a prior landlord (including the City),
provided that failure to provide maintenance to the Tenant Leased
Property as required under the Lease of Space may constitute a current
breach by the Lender or successor in interest even though the conditions
causing such breach originated during the City’s tenure as landlord;

(ii) subject to any offsets or defenses which the Tenant might have against any
prior landlord (including the City); or

(i)  bound by any rent or additional rent which Tenant might have paid in
advance to any prior landlord (including the City) for a period in excess of
two monthly payment periods under the Lease of Space or by any security
deposit, cleaning deposit or other prepaid charge which the Tenant might
have paid in advance to any prior landlord (including the City);

and further provided that the pecuniary liability of the Lender or any such
successor in interest with respect to the lessor’s obligations under the Lease of
Space (with the exception of the payment of taxes and utilities, in which case
liability is limited to the Lender’s interest in the Site) is limited to the amount of
the base rent payable by the Tenant under the Lease of Space and may be offset
against such rent obligation in lieu of payment by the Lender or any such successor.

New Lease. Upon the written request of either the Lender or the Tenant to the
other given at the time of the Lender taking possession of the Site pursuant to the
Financing Leases, the parties agree to execute a lease of the Tenant Leased
Property upon the same terms and conditions as the Lease of Space, which lease
shall cover any unexpired term of the Lease of Space.

The Lender shall have no responsibility to provide (or liability for not providing)
any additional space for which Tenant has any option or right under the Lease of
Space unless Lender at its option elects to provide the same.



Acknowledgement and Agreement by the City. The City acknowledges and agrees for
itself and its successors and assigns, that;

(a)

(b)

(c)

This Agreement does not:

(i) constitute a waiver by the Lender of any of its rights under the F inancing
Leases; or

(ii) in any way release the City from its obligations to comply with the terms,
provisions, conditions, covenants, agreements and clauses of the
Financing Leases;

The provisions of the Financing Leases remain in full force and effect and must be
complied with by the City in accordance with the terms of the Financing Leases;
and

If the Lender or successor in interest has taken possession of the Site due to a
default by the City under the Financing Leases, the Tenant may pay all rent and all
other sums due under the Lease of Space to the Lender as provided in this
Agreement.

Amendments, Termination and Renegotiation of Lease of Space.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Prior to the Lender taking possession of the Site pursuant to the Financing Leases,
the Tenant and the City shall have the right to cancel, terminate or not renew the
Lease of Space without the consent of the Lender. The City shall give notice to
the Lender within 30 days after such cancelation, termination or non-renewal.

Prior to the Lender taking possession of the Site pursuant to the Financing Leases,
the Tenant and the City shall have the right to renegotiate, amend or replace the
Lease of Space, provided that (1) any agreements amending or replacing the Lease
of Space shall be subject to this Agreement and shall constitute the “Lease of
Space” hereunder, and (2) the Lender shall not be subject to any increased liability
of the City undertaken pursuant to such amendments or replacements of the Lease
of Space.

Subsequent to the Lender taking possession of the Site pursuant to the Financing
Leases, any cancellation, termination, amendment or replacement of the Lease of
Space shall occur only with the prior written consent of the Lender or its successor
in interest.

No Construction Obligation of Lender. The Lender shall have no obligation or incur any
liability with respect to the erection or completion of improvements in which the Tenant
Leased Property is located or any improvements for Tenant’s use and occupancy, either at
the commencement of the term of the Lease of Space or upon any renewal or extension
thereof or upon the addition of additional space, pursuant to any expansion rights contained
in the Lease of Space.



7

Notice. All notices to any party hereunder shall be deemed to have been duly given if
mailed by United States registered or certified mail, with return receipt requested, postage
prepaid to the address set forth below and shall be deemed complete upon any such mailing;

Lender:

Central Bank of Boone County
P.O. Box 678

Columbia, MO 65205

Attn: Dawn Shellabarger

City:

City of Ashland, Missouri
109 East Broadway
Ashland, MO 65010
Attention: City Clerk

Tenant:
The Callaway Bank

101 West Broadway
Ashland, MO 65010

Miscellaneous.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

This Agreement supersedes any inconsistent provision of the Lease of Space with
respect to the application of the Lease of Space, as between the Tenant and the
Lender or its successors in interest.

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to derogate from or in any
way impair or affect the lien and charge or provisions of the Financing Leases.

Lender shall have no obligations nor incur any liability with respect to any
warranties of any nature whatsoever, whether pursuant to the Lease of Space or
otherwise, including, without limitation, any warranties respecting use,
compliance with zoning, title to the Site, the City’s authority, habitability, fitness
for purpose or possession. In acting hereunder, the Lender shall be entitled to all
rights, protections and immunities granted to it under the Financing Leases.

Under no circumstance shall any recovery be had against the Lender with respect
to the Tenant Leased Property exceeding the equity interest of the Lender in the
Tenant Leased Property.

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their respective
successors and permitted assigns; provided however, that in the event of the
assignment or transfer of the interest of the Lender, all obligations and liabilities
of the Lender under this Agreement shall terminate, and thereupon all such
obligations and liabilities shall be the responsibility of the party to whom the

-5-



()

Lender’s interest is assigned or transferred; and provided further that the interest
of the Tenant under this Agreement may not be assigned or transferred without the
prior written consent of the City, or if the Lender or successor in interest has taken
possession of the Site due to a default by the City under the Financing Leases, the
written consent of the Lender or such successor in interest.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws
of Missouri.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Subordination, Non-Disturbance,
and Attornment Agreement as of April 30, 2021.

CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY

By:
Name:
Title:
ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS.
COUNTY OF BOONE )
BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this day of . 2021, before me, the

undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, came
to me personally known, who, being by me being before me duly sworn did say that (s)he is a
of CENTRAL BANK OF BOONE COUNTY, a state banking
corporation formed under the laws of the State of Missouri, and that said instrument was signed on
behalf of said corporation by authority of its board of directors, and said official acknowledged said
instrument to be executed for the purposes therein stated and as the free act and deed of said
corporation,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal,
the day and year last above written.

Printed Name:
Notary Public in and for said State
Commissioned in County

Subordination, Nondisturbance and Attornment Agreement

3-1



CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI, as Lessee

(SEAL)

By:

Name: Richard Sullivan

Title: Mayor
ATTEST:
Name: Darla Sapp
Title: City Clerk

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) S8S.
COUNTY OF BOONE )
On this day of , 2021, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public,

appeared RICHARD SULLIVAN, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did
say that he is the MAYOR of the CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI, a fourth-class city and
political subdivision duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri, and that
the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of said City, and that said
instrument was signed and sealed in behalf of said City by authority of its Board of Aldermen, and
said officer acknowledged said instrument to be executed for the purposes therein stated and as the
free act and deed of said City.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal,
the day and year last above written.

Printed Name:
Notary Public in and for said State
Commissioned in County

Subordination, Nondisturbance and Attornment Agreement

5-2



THE CALLAWAY BANK

Name:
Title:

STATE OF MISSOURI )
S8,

e

COUNTY OF )

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this __ day of . 2021, before me, the
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, came ;
to me personally known, who, being by me being before me duly sworn did say that (s)he is a
of THE CALLAWAY BANK, a state banking corporation formed under
the laws of the State of Missouri, and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said corporation
by authority of its board of directors, and said official acknowledged said instrument to be executed
for the purposes therein stated and as the free act and deed of said corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal,
the day and year last above written.

Notary Public - State of Missouri
Commissioned in
County

(SEAL)

My commission expires:

Subordination, Nondisturbance and Attornment Agreement

53



EXHIBIT A

SITE

Lot Two (2) of McKinney Subdivision in the City of Ashland, Boone County, Missouri, as shown
by the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 46, Page 11, Records of Boone County, Missouri.



EXHIBIT B

PRIVATE SUBLEASE AREA

i f.:.'-::::.til'
r { = |
[l

Privaie
Sublease Area

- EENE LanE =

L, FLOOR PLAN - Modified for City of Ashland

L WA e

3 November 2020




Space Above Line Reserved for Recorder's Use

. Title of Document: Termination
. Date of Document: April 30, 2021
. Grantor(s) Names JEFFERSON CITY AREA YOUNG MEN'S CHRISTIAN
and Statutory Addresses: ASSOCIATION D/B/A THE JEFFERSON CITY AREA YMCA
525 Ellis Blvd
Jefferson City MO 65101
. Grantee(s) Names MCKINNEY PROPERTIES, L.L.C.
and Statutory Addresses: 101 West Broadway
Ashland, Missouri 65010
. Legal Description: See following page.
. Reference(s): Notice of Lease Agreement and Right of First Refusal

recorded January 12, 2015, at Book 4390, Page 88
(Instrument # 2015000522)




TERMINATION

A. MCKINNEY PROPERTIES, L.L.C., a Missouri limited liability company (the
“Landlord™) leased space within the improved premises described below (the “Property”) to JEFFERSON
CITY AREA YOUNG MEN'S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION D/B/A THE JEFFERSON CITY AREA
YMCA, a Missouri non profit corporation (the “YMCA™) pursuant to a lease dated as of January 1, 2015
(the “Original Lease™), notice of which was given by the Notice of Lease Agreement and Right of First
Refusal dated January 5, 2015 and recorded in the office of the Boone County Recorder of Deeds on
January 12, 2015, at Book 4390, Page 88 (Instrument # 2015000522) (the “Lease Notice™).

B. The Original Lease was subsequently modified by that certain YMCA — McKinney
Properties LEASE dated November 15, 2018 (the “Lease Modification™) between the Landlord and the
YMCA. The Original Lease, the Lease Notice and the Lease Modification are referred to collectively in
this Termination as the “Lease”.

C. The Landlord and the YMCA agree that the Lease is terminated as of April 30, 2021 and
that the YMCA shall have no further interest in the Property pursuant to the Lease from and after such
date.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE LANDLORD AND THE YMCA DO HEREBY STATE AND
DECLARE:

That as of April 30, 2021, the Lease is terminated and is of no further force or effect. The real
property affected by the Lease is described as follows:

Lot Two (2) of McKinney Subdivision in the City of Ashland, Boone County, Missouri,
as shown by the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 46, Page 11, Records of Boone
County, Missouri.

All of the YMCA’s rights with respect to the Property are terminated as of April 30, 2021,

including the right to remove any items from the Property and any right of refusal with respect to the sale
of the Property, which the YMCA hereby waives.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties named above have caused this Termination to be duly
executed in their respective corporate names, as of the date written on the cover page hereof,

JEFFERSON CITY AREA YOUNG MEN'S
CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION D/B/A THE

JEFFERSON CITY AREA YMCA
By:
Name:
Title:
ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS.
COUNTY OF )
On this day of April, 2021, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, appeared
, to me personally known, who, being by me duly
sworn, did say that he is the of JEFFERSON CITY AREA YOUNG

MEN'S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION D/B/A THE JEFFERSON CITY AREA YMCA, and that said
instrument was signed and sealed by authority of its board of directors, and said officer acknowledged
said instrument to be executed for the purposes therein stated and as the free act and deed of said entity.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, [ have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the
County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written.

Name:

Notary Public in and for said State
(SEAL)

My Commission Expires:

Termination — McKinney / YMCA Lease



MCKINNEY PROPERTIES, L.L.C,,
a Missouri limited liability company

By:
Name:
Title: ~ Member/Manager

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) 88.
COUNTY OF )
On this day of April, 2021, before me, appeared

, to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did
say that (s)he is the Member/Manager of McKinney Properties, L.L.C., a Missouri limited liability
company and that the foregoing instrument was signed for the purposes therein contained on behalf of
said Company and by authority of said Company; and he further acknowledged said instrument to be the
free act and deed of said Company.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day
and year first above written.

Notary Public

Printed Name

My Commission Expires:

Termination — McKinney / YMCA Lease



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2021-015 ORDINANCE NO. 1340

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR SMITH & LANE SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, the City has enacted a Subdivision Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations, The Planning and Zoning
Commission has recommended the approval of the Smith & Lane Subdivision at their meeting
on March 09, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen accepts the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning
Commission.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ASHLAND,
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The final plat of Smith & Lane Subdivision, meets the requirements of Chapter 11,
Subdivision Regulations, of the City of Ashland Municipal Code and approved for recording.

Section 2. The legal description of the subdivision is as follows:

A Tract of land located in the Southeast Quarter of Section 10, Township 46 North, Range 12
West, City of Ashland, Boone County, Missouri being the Tract described in the Warranty Deed
Recorded in Book 5362, Page 46, of the Boone County Records and being more particularly
described as follows:

All of Lot Seven (7), Block Two (2) of Gay’s Addition to Ashland, Boone County, Missouri
and the West Ten (10) feet of Hickam Alley adjacent to said Lot Seven (7) , as vacated by the
Ordinance recorded in Book 647, Page 664 of said County Records.

Section 3. The City Clerk is hereby instructed to have the plat recorded.

Section 4. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage and approval.

Dated this day of , 2021.

Richard Sullivan, Mayor



Attest:

Darla Sapp, City Clerk

Certified as to correct form:

Jeffrey Kays, City Attorney



MEMORANDUM

DATE: March 10, 2021

TO: Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen

FROM: Planning and Zoning Commission

RE: Recommendation from Ithe Planning and Zoning Commission

1. The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the approval of Smith & Lane
Final Plat for Landyn Smith on parcel # 24-220-00-02-019.00 01 to the City of
Ashland Board of Aldermen.

Carrie Fischer
Administrative Assistant



e

FILED FOR RECORD, DOSKE EEUnTY, MEaaouk
HRRA GIETZEL. RECOADER OF DEEDS

FINAL PLAT

SMITH AND LANE SUBDIVISION

ASHLAND, MO

= T ——

l—-———v-—.._.__

VISTHITY 1ar

==
MSCLURE"

making lives better.

| NORRE 287 ASH ETREET sk
Casf 5 Tt urz 160t PERREYLUAIA AV
= 1 33 HALE Rw e COLUMEDIA, W0 £5301
¥ ~ o= B 874700 262 ) A7) a1a-1e
== o =a '?_ CERTIMICATE GOF AUTHERI T
o S e Ho, LE-2011000235
gl ’r’- :?\bwng;m‘;’%b:‘:l AT B GRS AD0THOn To azulann j
o
: i Lt colstT TURVEY
GENERAL LEGEND E| | ity i 3 LANDYN AND ZOE SMITH
E I ,|§ oy ASHLAND, MISSOURI
2 | i | | PROPERTY DESCRIPTIQN;
— e | A TRAET GF LANG LOCATED 1N THE SOUTHEAST CUARTER MGLLE PACEAT tak.
g [ omie.  SEECRERIEIOSE, ~Lisa
x ST 390 200M) 302,07y | B T WARTANTY DS ED RECHDED M
o — 5302, FAGE 44, CF THR AGOHE COUNTY NEGGADS AND DEING
| = - - MCAE PARTICULAALY DESCRIGED A% FoLL
R | e e ._-J g ALce Lot N () hcr o o) o s oo 10
RONALORROR. M. R0 T E {191 FEEY oF LocHara ALLEY ADLASENY T Al L oF S s I;‘r:f"”ﬁ-.“—l
il | | |& Hran {7, A3 UAEATRD 1Y THE GAOIANGE RECORDCD IN DOOK s 56
| Aare, £ €47, PAGE £64 OF SAID EBLNTY RECIRDT
I [
2 Ulareote
b SheralerE
; i \' 10145 ARy an-auno 10117 0y L
— . w it
W . Crvutigrs b 220
TI0W 208 2814 702 Vﬁhj T ol Ly oL 20a 17
| I e 435 s -1 FEOAUARY 12, 3001
T
| ! LT, LR 4 b Al S0 Asbard lz i )
n
i apiLh £ 1 gonrudl o BT or s
| I mst ﬁ"ﬁm.m L ] ot CERTIFICATION: A0 2T BT K T
| | 51 | HEMEDY CERTIFY THAT | CONPLETRES A 4LRVEY FOR THE DERCAIBED — i
| i FREPERTY 1 ACCOMDANGE W TH CURAENT MSOURI S TAHBAREH FOR
TES | g PROPEATY REOUNEARY SURVEYE,
HOTES | iy vty e e
ettt M i

i, THIS SURVEY

&3 THE Accl, ron
UnBay PROPERTY A% II!FINIII OY MIZI0URI BOARD ALLE J0

A 201018 04RGIA)

17,

2 MF THAGT GCES NOT LIE 1N THE 100 YEAR MLOGOPLAIN AS

-

ALL ELRVE QIMEHY

OTHERWISE MOTRE AS CHE, FER CHOND DIENTIONT
. IEARINGA ARE REFEAENGED 10 BRI HOMTH

OF THE MISSOUR] STATE PLANE EOORDIMATE

-

BT ANE ARG MEASUREMENTS UNLESS

.|
LAY & ALOCK 10T ADCITICH 10 ATHLIKE |

KNOW N PRESENTS

LANEYH SMITH AHD 256 BATH, BEING THE SOLE CAANERS OF THE HERFSH
CESCAINED TRACTE, HAZ CAUTER THE GAME TO BE NE-SUBDIVDCD AS
THOWH OF THIS PLAT.

| EASCMENTS, SF THE TYFES ANO AT THE LOGATIONS AS SHOWHN, ARE
HEAEDY DEDICATED TO PUBLIE LaB, FSREVER

* IHWATHESS WHEREOF, THE LindafRaKINED HAS CAUSED THEEE PRESENTS

—I

GYSTEM (CENTRAL 20HE), ODTAINCD FRER
E1 SRIERVATION, MODOT CONS VRS | TRBE SED;
HETWERK, HABAS G411) I | L
= = o oim 2O “ TR AT EE L —
APFRCNAL I THE CITY O AHLANG FLAYAIHT 1 T ————— L - -—
ZOHNG COMMISSION THA____ DAY eR._ ———
e ——m—— . oM re# N THE YEAR 2021
REDBUD LANE StronE REFETGALL 1 BMITH 21D e BaTH,
&I ME KHGIAH, VHO BEIHG BY ME DALY SWORH,
DI SAY THAT JAIE HETAUMENT WAS SIGHED BY THEM
W SR A5 & FREE AST AAD) DECTS FOR THE FURPGIES THEREIN B747ED.
MECENVED AND ACCEPTED ¥ ORDIHANCE OF THE EifT {1 TR FRAGHY WHEREGE, | HAVE HEREUHTO BET MY HAMD
OF A AN AHE TS BOAND OF A DERISH THE__ RND AFFIXED WY SFFIEIA), JEAL THE QY AKD YBAR FIRGT
sed, VIRITTEN ABOVE.
EHEND SULLIAN, SHTTANT TULIE
w6 0 £l
[ el o
= == — —=




SHLAND

Mizsonri

Akt City of Ashland
rer— 109 East Broadway, Ashland, Missouri 65010
Department Source: City Administrator
To: Board of Alderpersons
From: Lelande Rehard
Board Meeting Date: April, 6" 2021

Re: Agreement for the Optimist Pool

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: In calendar year 2020, the Optimist Pool suffered an extraordinary financial loss due to
Covid-19, and the Board of Aldermen authorized a payment to the Optimist Club in the amount of $12,604.91 to
offset their loss for the year. The Optimist Club brought forward and agreement for continuing to operate the pool
at the March 16", 2021 Board of Alderman meeting. Staff was directed to work with the Optimist Club to bring a
revised agreement.

DISCUSSION: The existing agreement dated August 15, 2006 provides an annual payment to the Optimists not to
exceed $3,000 to offset any operational losses.

The new agreement proposes a three (3) year term, the City waives all Water, Sewer, and Trash fees for the pool,
the City pays the Optimist Club $3,000 per year for the term of the agreement at the beginning of the pool season
to assist with needed repairs and replacements, and the City agrees to maintain the up to $3,000 operational lost
payment from the original agreement,

The Optimist will provide a list of needed capital items before the pool season begins and a profit-loss statement at
the end of pool season to determine if and how much of an operational subsidy is needed.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Short Term Impact (cost proposed legislation the next 5 years): $3,000/year, approximately $1,500 for
Water, Sewer, and Trash/year, up to $3,000/year for operational losses. These cost would in effect for 3

years.

SUGGESTED BOARD ACTION: For consideration by the Board. No staff recommendation.




4-06-2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A COMMUNITY POOL
AGREEMENT WITH THE ASHLAND OPTIMIST CLUB

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ASHLAND,
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

The Board of Aldermen authorizes the Mayor to enter into a Community Pool Agreement with the
Ashland Optimist Club.

Furthermore, the Board of Aldermen has agreed to the terms as set forth in the attached agreement, which
by this reference is incorporated herein, as if more fully and completely set out as Exhibit “A”.

Passed and adopted this day of ,2021.

Richard Sullivan, Mayor

Attest:

Darla Sapp, City Clerk



COMMUNITY POOL AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 6th day of April 2021, to the 1* day of December, 2023
by and between THE ASHLAND OPTIMIST CLUB, herein called “Optimists”, and the CITY OF
ASHLAND, herein called “City”.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, City is presently served by the public community swimming pool owned and operated by
Optimists, pursuant to an AGREEMENT dated April 6, 2021 between the parties hereto; and

WHEREAS, the City did not have the financial wherewithal to construct a community swimming pool in
1989. The City approached the Optimists to own, operate and maintain a community swimming pool on
their behalf. At the time, the SOUTHERN BOONE COUNTY R-1 SCHOOL DISTRICT was also restricted
from donating property to a civic organization therefore donated property to the City with a requirement that
the City to sell the same property to the Optimists for $1.00 to own and operate as a community swimming
pool. The property transfer further required that if the property ceased to operate as a community swimming
pool, the property ownership would revert to SOUTHERN BOONE COUNTY R-1 SCHOOL DISTRICT.

WHEREAS, the day to day operations of the swimming pool have been underwritten and provided by
Optimists since that time; and

WHEREAS, the operating, maintenance and capital improvement costs for said swimming pool have risen
substantially and continually since its inception; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Alderman of City deems that it is in the best interest that the citizens of City of
Ashland have a municipal swimming pool, but City is without sufficient funds at this time to undertake the
construction and operation of a community swimming pool without the assistance of the Optimists and other
providers; and

WHEREAS, Optimists have, in the past and of their own accord, allowed access thereto to citizens at a
reduced cost, and have further allowed indigent and underprivileged residents of the City access to the
swimming pool, thereby alleviating potential concerns to the Board of Alderman of City.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants hereinafier set forth, the
parties agree as follows:

1. Optimists will assume all liability with regards to its use of said facility. Further, Optimists agrees
to indemnify, hold harmless and defend City, its governing Board of Alderman, officers, employees
and agents form and against every claim, demand, liability, loss, damage or expense, including the
cost of defending or prosecuting any such claim, which it may suffer, may be held liable for, or
which may be made by any person, firm or corporations, or any other entity arising from or caused
by any act or omission of Optimists in the performance of this Agreement. Optimists shall sign a
Hold Harmless Agreement requested by the City’s insurance provider.

2. Optimists will, at its sole expense, procure and keep in force during the entire term of this
Agreement, liability insurance.

3. The Optimist shall submit an itemized list of needed capital improvements, repairs, and
replacements for the community swimming pool to the City by April 1* of each year for the term of
this agreement. The City agrees to support the maintenance and capital improvement expenses of the




community swimming pool in the amount of $3,000 per year by April 30" of each year for the term
of this agreement.

4. City agrees to waive any and all utility expenses incurred for the use of and preparation of the
community swimming pool including water, sewer, and trash for the term of the Agreement.

5. Optimists shall submit a written report of swimming pool revenues and swimming pool
expenditures to the City following the closing of the pool for the fiscal year. The City agrees to
subsidize the operational expenses above revenues up to $3.000 by December 31 of same year.

6. Optimists shall continue to provide access to the swimming pool for underprivileged and indigent
users who are residents of the City, and agree to work with City in obtaining the names and
addresses of individuals who require or would benefit from said services.

7. City and Optimists agree that Optimists may charge appropriate and reasonable entrance and usage
fees for activities and community events.

8. This Agreement inures to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the
parties hereto.

9. In the event that any portion of this Agreement is deemed to be unenforceable or against public
policy, the remaining terms hereof shall apply in full force and effect, as if said term does not exist.

10. The terms hereof can be amended or modified by either party only upon the written acquiescence of
both parties hereto in writing,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused the Agreement to be executed by their properly
authorized officers on the date first written above.

OPTIMIST CLUB OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI

Jan Palmer, President

Attest:
Barrett Glascock, Secretary

CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI

Richard Sullivan, Mayor

Attest:
Darla Sapp, City Clerk




00°00S°ST $ [e10L
00°0S€ $ SUQ2IS g - Jreday]/o0e]day :SUIOS pUB)S UOISSIIUO))
00°00S $ U9310S PPy :100(J AUy puel§ uoIssaouo)) :Iredaraoe[dar 100(]
00°00F $ I00(] g4 uo1ssaou0)) :2oe[dal 100
00°00¢ $ 195010 1B A, :20edal I00(]
00°0ST ¢ SIreyd ¢ 8193unoj (g :(ourds/oriqey) aredoy :sirey)/S193UN0
00°00C $ ovp doyg maN
00°00S ) (SuowoMm 29 uswr) Jredal 19110 ] /SIoMOYS WOOIYIRg :SuUIqUIn[J
00000t $ SINIJ Ul pues ade[day] :pues I91,] [00]
00°00¢ $  Ireday] (1931, [00d
007005 $ sIoppe] g 2or[doy :sioppe] [00d
00°00L $ S1YSI1] § 20eday :SIYSIT [00g
00°00% by IaweIp ¢ Yas asoy 06 yum dund jood
007001 $ T 9SBYIINg SIQWWINS [00d
00°00¢S $ JuIeJ PUB 2A0WRY I [00d
00°00T°1 $ ured Axodq :J00g
00°000°S1 $ 9[1}/WOL0q JSE[GPUES :[00]

JBWISH IS0

JSI'T PIN




£ty o

SHLAND

City of Ashland

- g 109 East Broadway, Ashland, Missouri 65010

Department Source: Public Works

To: Board of Alderpersons

From: James Creel, Public Works Director
Board Meeting Date: April 6, 2021

Re: Ashland Community Park Tennis Court Resurfacing Project

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Authorization is needed from the Board of Alderpersons to proceed with the Tennis Court Resurfacing Project.

DISCUSSION:

The Ashland Community Park Tennis Courts have been in need of repairs for several years. To repair the tennis
courts appropriately, | believe that Option 3 of the attached proposal from McConnell & Associates is the best
choice. This repair will bring the courts back to a like new condition by repairing all surface deficiencies and
resurfacing the entire enclosed area with color coating. The vendor will also apply striping to both courts for tennis
and pickle ball.

The Ashland Park Board also agreed with this option as the best choice. They approved this project during the
3/8/2021 meeting and the required funds are available through the Park Tax Fund-Capital Expenditures.

McConnell & Associates is a TIPS/TAPS Awarded Vendor, which would allow the City of Ashland to utilize their
services as a cooperative agreement. The City of Ashland is already an approved member of TIPS/TAPS Interlocal
Purchasing System.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed repair option is estimated to cost approximately $32,663.00. Attached is a cost estimate detailing
additional expenses of approximately $3,186.00 for additional fencing rails, 2 new benches, and miscellaneous
construction materials. 51,000 has already been expended for engineering services to address the storm water
runoff issues,

SUGGESTED BOARD ACTION:

If the Board of Alderpersons agrees with the staff recommendation, the Mayor should be authorized to enter into
contract with McConnell & Associates for the completion of tennis court resurfacing repairs.




RESOLUTION: 4-06-2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH
MCCONNELL AND ASSOCIATES FOR THE ASHLAND COMMUNITY PARK TENNIS COURT
REPAIR PROJECT

WHEREAS, the staff has been seeking a grant from the USTA for tennis court repairs and due to budget
constraints they have been notified that no funding with be granted in the 2021 year; and

WHEREAS, the Park Board would like to pursue the project without the funding.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ASHLAND,
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

The Board of Aldermen hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute an agreement with McConnell and
Associates for the Ashland Community Park Tennis Court Repair Project and authorize the Ashland
Public Works staff to schedule the project.

Passed and adopted this day of , 2021,

Richard Sullivan, Mayor

ATTEST:

Darla Sapp, City Clerk



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI AND
McCONNELL & ASSOCIATES.

THIS AGREEMENT (hereinafter "Agreement") between the City of Ashland, Missouri, a municipal
corporation (hereinafter "City") and McConnell & Associates., with an address of 1225 Iron, North
Kansas City, MO 64116, (hereinafter "Consultant") is entered into on the date of the last signatory noted
below (the "Effective Date").

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, City desires to engage Consultant to render certain professional services as outlined in the
Scope of Work and Fee Schedule in Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, Consultant represents that Consultant is equipped, competent, and able to provide all of the
professional services necessary or appropriate in accordance with this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto, for good and sufficient consideration, the receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged, intending to be legally bound, do hereby agree as follows.

1. Services. City agrees to engage the services of Consultant and Consultant agrees to perform
the professional services outlined in Exhibit A. City may add to Consultant services or delete therefrom
activities of a similar nature, provided that the total cost of such work does not exceed the total cost
allowance as specified herein. Consultant shall undertake such changed activities or prepare written
reports only upon the direction of City. All such directives and changes shall be in written form and
prepared and approved by the City Administrator and shall be accepted and countersigned by
Consultant.

2. Subcontracts. Consultant represents that Consultant will secure at Consultant's own expense,
all personnel required to perform the services called for under this Agreement by Consultant. None of
the work or services covered by this Agreement shall be subcontracted or assigned without the written
approval of City.

3. Term. The services of Consultant shall commence as soon as practicable after the execution
of this Agreement, unless otherwise directed in writing, and shall be undertaken and completed in such
sequence for their expeditious completion in the light of the purposes of the Agreement, but in any
event, all of the services required hereunder shall be completed by July 30, 2021, unless the Parties
agree otherwise, in writing.

4. Payment. The City agrees to pay the Consultant on an hourly basis and per task at the rates
set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto in a total amount not to exceed the sum of thirty-one thousand
and nine hundred sixty-threes and dollars an ($31,963.00), which shall constitute com plete
compensation for all services and payment of expenses to be rendered under this Agreement.
Consultant shall submit a monthly invoice to City setting forth the amounts due and payable for services
rendered and City shall make payment, or notify Consultant of any dispute relating to amounts due,
within thirty (30) days following the submission of such invoice. It is expressly understood that in no
event will the total amount to be paid to Consultant under the terms of this Agreement or any
amendment thereto exceed the sum set forth in this paragraph unless otherwise agreed to in writing
between the parties in advance of the provision of such services.



5. Termination. City shall have the right at any time by written notice to Consultant to terminate
and cancel this Agreement, without cause, for the convenience of City. In such event, Consultant shall
immediately stop work and City shall not be liable to Consultant except for payment for actual work
performed prior to such notice in an amount proportionate to the completed contract price and for the
actual costs of preparations made by Consultant for the performance of the cancelled portions of the
contract, including a reasonable allowance of profit applicable to the actual work performed.
Anticipatory profits and consequential damages shall not be recoverable by Consultant. Should City
terminate this Agreement, Consultant shall refund any advance payment made and amount due to City
within thirty (30) days of the termination date.

6. Notices. Any notice, demand, request, or communication required or authorized by the
Agreement shall be delivered either by hand, facsimile, overnight courier or mailed by certified mail,
return receipt requested, with postage prepaid, to:

If to CITY: If to CONSULTANT:

City of Ashland McConnell $ Associates

City Administrator 1225 Iron

109 E. Broadway North Kansa City, MO 64116.

Ashland, MO 65010

The designation and titles of the person to be notified or the address of such person may be changed at
any time by written notice. Any such notice, demand, request, ar communication shall be deemed
delivered on receipt if delivered by hand and on deposit by the sending party if delivered by courier or
U.5. mail.

7. Compliance with Laws. Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local
laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.

8. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri and/or the laws of the United States, as applicable.
The venue for all litigation arising out of, or relating to this Agreement, shall be in Boone County,
Missouri, or the United States Western District of Missouri. The Parties hereto irrevocably agree to
submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts in the State of Missouri. The Parties agree to waive
any defense of forum non conveniens.

9. Employment of Unauthorized Aliens Prohibited. Consultant agrees to comply with Missouri
Revised Statute Section 285.530 in that Consultant shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or
continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the state of Missouri. As a condition
for the award of this Agreement the Consultant shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with
respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services, Consultant shall also sign
an affidavit affirming that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in
connection with the contracted services. Consultant shall require any subcontractor to affirmatively
state in its contract with Consultant that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for
employment or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the state of Missouri.
Consultant shall also require any subcontractor to provide Consultant with a sworn affidavit under the
penalty of perjury attesting to the fact that the subcontractor's employees are lawfully present in the
United States.



10. No Third-Party Beneficiary. No provision of the Agreement is intended to nor shall it in any
way inure to the benefit of any person, so as to constitute any such person a third-party beneficiary
under the Agreement.

11. No Assignment. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties
and their respective successors and permitted assigns. Neither Party shall assign this Agreement or any
of its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other Party.

12. No Waiver of Immunities. In no event shall the language of this Agreement constitute or be
construed as a waiver or limitation for either party's rights or defenses with regard to each party's
applicable sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections as provided by federal and
state constitutions or laws.

13. HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT. To the fullest extent not prohibited by law, Consultant shall
indemnify and hold harmless the City of Ashland, its directors, officers, and employees from and against
all claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including but not limited reasonableto attorney's fees
recoverable by law) for bodily injury and/or property damage arising by reason of any negligent
performance, of Consultant, of any subcontractor (meaning anyone, including but not limited to
consultants having a contract with Consultant or a subcontractor for part of the services), of anyone
directly or indirectly employed by Consultant or by any subcontractor, or of anyone for whose acts the
Consultant or its subcontractor is liable, in connection with providing these services. This provision does
not, however, require Consultant to indemnify, hold harmless, or defend the City of Ashland from the
City of Ashland's own negligence.

14. Professional Standard of Care. Consultant understands and agrees that City has contracted
with Consultant based upon Consultant's representations that Consultant is a skilled professional and
fully able to provide the services set out in this Agreement. Consultant shall perform its services
consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by professionals practicing in the same
or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. In addition to any other indemnification set
out in this Agreement, Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold and save harmless City from any and all
claims, settlements, and judgments (including third party claims) arising out of Consultants breach of the
Standard of Care.

15. Audit. Consultant shall maintain financial records according to generally accepted
accounting standards. City has the right, at its sole expense and during normal working hours, to
examine the records of Consultant to the extent reasonably necessary to verify the accuracy of any
statement, charge or computation made pursuant to this Agreement.

16. Nondiscrimination. During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant shall not
discriminate against any employee, applicant for employment or recipient of services because of race,
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, age, disability, or national origin. Consultant shall
comply with all provisions of laws, rules and regulations governing the regulation of Equal Employment
Opportunity including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

17. General Independent Contractor. This Agreement does not create an employee/employer
relationship between the Parties. It is the Parties' intention that the Consultant will be an independent
contractor and not the City's employee for all purposes.



18. Contract Documents. This Agreement includes the following exhibits, which are
incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit Description
A Scope of Work and Fee Schedule.

In the event of a conflict between the terms of an exhibit and the terms of this Agreement, the terms of
this Agreement control.

19. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties. No
modification, amendment, or waiver of any of the provisions of this agreement shall be effective unless
in writing specifically referring hereto and signed by both parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have set their hands on the day and year herein stated.
CITY OF ASHLAND, MISSOURI

By:

Mayor

Date:

Attest:
City Clerk

CERTIFICATION: | hereby certify that this Agreement is within the purpose of the appropriation to which
it is to be charged, Account Number , and that there is an unencumbered
balance to the credit of such appropriation sufficient to pay therefor.

Treasurer
CONSULTANT
By:
Name:
Title:
Date:
ATTEST:
BY:

Secretary or Witness
Name:




EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK AND FEE SCHEDULE



The below table includes all cost estimates for the Ashland Community Park Tennis
Court Resurfacing Project. Aside for the actual court resurfacing, other improvements
will be completed by Ashland Public Works staff to address storm water runoff issues,

Ashland Community Park
Tennis Court Resurfacing Project

fencing enclosure improvements, and the replacement of unsafe benches.

Expenses Amount

Professional Fees (Storm Water $1.000.00 (already expended)
engineering)

Construction Costs $32,663.00

(McConnell & Associates)

Fencing materials $1,986.00

Benches $700.00

Misc. Materials (concrete, pipe, etc.) $500.00
| Total Expenses $36,849.00




o MAC

MeConnell & Associates

PROPOSAL
Bid ID Number:44845
Date12/18/2020

1225 Iron - North Kansas City, Missouri 64116 - Office (816) 842-6066 - Fax (816) 842-1638

Bid Submitted To:

City of Ashland Public Works
399 N. College Street
Ashland, MO 65010

Job Proposed:

TIPS Ashland City Park - Tennis Courts
2020 399 N College Street
Ashland, MO 65010

PHONE: FAX:
CONTACT:
Description Quantity Units Net Price
TIPS Cooperative Purchasing Contract Numbers:
170205
Option 1: Crack Filling $5,976.00
Tennis Court Crack Filling: 600 LF
Fill all cracks full depth with a Court Palch Binder, Portland cement, and silica sand mixture.
Grind cracks smooth.
Color coat over the filled cracks,
Repaint any lines that were disrupted by crack filling.
NOTE: Courts will laok patched. No guarantee for crack filling.
Existing cracks will reappear and new cracks may form.
Optlon 2: Resurface $22,313.00
Tennis Court Power Washing:
Thoraughly power wash all dirt and debris from the tennis courts with a 4000 PS| power
washar.
Birdbath Filling:
Fill birdbaths with court patch binder, Perlland cement, and silica sand mixture,
Grind edges smooth.
Apply multiple applications of Acrylic Resurfacer to hide oul the repairs.
NOTE: No guarantee to totally remove all ponding areas.
Crack Filling: 600 LF
Fill all cracks full depth with a court pateh binder, Portland cement, and silica sand mixtura.
Grind cracks smaoth.
Apply multiple applications of acrylic resurfacer to hide out the repairs.
NQOTE: No guarantee for crack filling.
Existing cracks will reappear and new cracks may form.
Color Coating: 1440 8Y
Apply (2) Coats of Acrylic Resurfacer at a rate of .06 gallons per square yard per coat.
Apply (2) Coats of Acrylic Color Coatings at a minimum rate of .05 gallons per square yard
per coat,
Layout and Paint Playing lines per USTA standards.
Page 1 0of 3 Initials



’ PROPOSAL
’ M A c Bid ID Number:44845

McConnell & Associates
g N Date:12/18/2020

1225 Iron - North Kansas City, Missouri 64116 - Office (816) 842-6066 - Fax (816) 842-1638

Bid Submitted To: Job Proposed:;

City of Ashland Public Works Ashland City Park - Tennis Courts 2020

399 N. College Street 399 N College Street

Ashland, MO 65010 Ashland, MO 85010

PHONE: FAX:

CONTACT:
Description Quantity Units Net Price
Optlon 3: abric Crack Repai $31,963.00

Tennis Court Powar Washing:
Thoroughly power wash all dirt and debris fram the tennis courts with a 4000 PSI power
washer.

Birdbath Filling:

Fill birdbaths with court patch binder, Portland cement, and silica sand mixture.
Grind edges smooth.

Apply multiple applications of Acrylic Resurfacer to hide out the repairs.

NOTE: Ne guarantee to totally remove all ponding areas.

MAC Geotextile Crack Repair System: BOD LF
Fill crack full depth with court patch binder, Portland cement, and silica sand mixture.

Grind and smooth the filled crack,

Install 12 inch wide geotextile fabric with an adhesive backing over the filled crack.

Install 20 inch wide TieTex fabric and salurale in acrylic resurfacer.

Install 40 inch wide TieTex fabric and saturate (n liquid court patch binder.

Thoroughly hide out crack repair system using multiple stepped out coats of acrylic

resurfacer.

NOTE: The Geotextile Crack Repair System will not prevent cracks fram growing out in
length beyond the repair nor will it protect the rest of the court from cracking. Egg shellspide
web fracturing in the acrylic coatings may develop over the fabrics.

Color Coating; 1440 S8¥Y
Apply (2) Coats of Acrylic Resurfacer at a rate of .06 gallons per square yard per coat.

Apply (2) Coats of Acrylic Colar Coalings at a minimum rate of .05 gallons per square yard

per coat,

Layout and Paint Playing lines per USTA standards.

Based on tax exempt prices.
A Project Exemption Certificate must be furnished before the start of wark.

Add Pickleball Lines to the Courts: $350.00 for each pickleball cour lines.

Page 2 of 3 Initials



o MAC

McConnell & Associates

PROPOSAL
Bid ID Number:44845
Date:12/18/2020

1225 Iron - North Kansas City, Missouri 64116 - Office (816) 842-6066 - Fax (816) 842-1638

City of Ashland Public Works

399 N. College Street
Ashland, MO 65010

PHONE: FAX:

CONTACT:

Bid Submitted To: Job Proposed:

Ashland City Park - Tennis Courts 2020
399 N College Street
Ashland, MO 65010

Description

Quantity Units Net Price

NO GUARANTEE FOR CRACK REFPAIRS/FILLING. EXISTING CRACKS WILL REAPPEAR

AND NEW CRACKS WILL FORM.
NO GUARANTEE TO TOTALLY ELIMINATE BIRD BATHS OR WATER SPOTS.

Price is for one mobilization. Each additional mobilization will be billed at $500.00 each.

Price includas all applicable taxes.

EXCLUSIONS:

- Bonds (If required add 1% to total amount)
- Permits

= Seeding/sod

- Fence work

- Concrete waork

= Windscreen

- Tennis court accessorles

- Lighting

- Any items not listed above.

NOTICE TO OWNER: FAILURE OF THIS CONTRACTOR TO PAY THOSE
PERSONS SUPPYING MATERIAL OR SERVICES TO COMPLETE THIS
CONTRACT CAN RESULT IN THE FILING OF A MECHANIC'S LIEN ON THE

CHAPTER 429, RSMO. TO AVOID THIS RESULT YOU MAY ASK THIS
CONTRACTOR FOR "LIEN WAIVERS" FROM ALL PERSONS SUPPLYING
MATERIAL OR SERVICES FOR THE WORK DESCRIBED IN THIS CONTRAG'
FAILURE TO SECURE LIEN WAIVERS MAY RESULT IN YOUR PAYING FOR
LABOR AND MATERIAL TWICE.

Mike Mehaffey

PAYMENT and COLLECTION: Payment is due upon reciept of
Company's invoice. If Company provides this
agreement/proposal/bid to an attorney for enforcement of its terms

PROPERTY WHICH IS THE SUBJECT OF THIS CONTRACT PURSUANT TO |finciuding but not limited to collection of amounts due, you agree to

pay all expenses and cost, including but not limited to attorney's
fees incurred by Company in such enforcement or collection, In
the event all sums are not paid when due, all unpaid sums shall

bear interest at the (18%) per annum until paid in full,

Acceptance of Proposal

The above prices, specifications and conditions are
satisfactory, and are hereby accepted.

Signature;

Name & Title (Please Print);___

Date
Accepted:

NOTES: THIS PROPOSAL MAY BE WITHDRAWN BY US IF NOT AC

Page 3 of 3

CEPTED WITHIN 30 DAYS,




[ LEAK ADJUSTMENT FORM
City of Ashland
109 E Broadway

Ashland, MO 65010

Current Sewer Charges: s 1Le8n.ap
Previous Month Charges: $ LTy S
Previous Month 2 Charges: 3 DJ) '-15
Previous Month 3 Charges: $ DRy
Total Monthly Charges: $ L%, DL
Average Monthly Sewer: $ 00 5
TOTALLEAK ADJUSTMENT:  s__ |1/ % .15

HLtevak Adjustment Policy: One |eak adjustment will be permitted per calendar
Hyear‘ The adjustment request must be submitted in writing to the City prior to the bill
.due date along with a paid invoice or supporting documentation of leak repair. The

adjustment will only apply to one month’s bill. Adjustment will be based on the aver-
age of the previous three (3) months charges. In the event an adjustment is granted,
the balance may be paid in full or in equal payment installments not to exceed a three
(3) month period.

e



RESOLUTION 7-07-2020
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LEAK ADJUSTMENT POLICY

Article 1. The Board of Aldermen has requested that the City re-visit the utility adjustment policy
that was removed in March 20, 2018.

Article 2. The Staff reviewed the policy and changes have been made so that customers with
significant utility bill increases due to a leak can apply for an adjustment to the charges billed for
the sewer.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ASHLAND,
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

Article 3. The Board of Aldermen hereby adopts the leak adjustment policy as attached to this
resolution and made a part hereof and directs staff to amend the Utility Procedures Manual.

e

Richard Sullivan, Mayor

Passed this i > day of j“\q\ , 2020.

Attest:

Do D

Darla Sapp, City Clerk ®




UTILITY ADJUSTMENTS

Customers who have experienced a significant increase in their monthly utility bill due to a water leak
may complete a Utility Adjustment Form (attached) describing the reason for their request. Only one
adjustment per calendar year is permitted.

Requests for an adjustment must include a detailed explanation of the reason for the request, i.e. water
leak under house, and be accompanied by documentation showing that the repairs have been made.

The City Administrator has the authority to adjust the sewer charge up to a maximum amount of
5800.00. Exceptions may be made for Commercial Utility Accounts. No adjustment to the bill for water
services will be allowed.

In order for an adjustment to be considered, the customer's billed sewer charges must be a minimum of
5100 over the average of the three months’ priar bills for the account.

The City Administrator or designee will review the request and determine if the adjustment is warranted
and to what extent an adjustment will be made. If the customer believes the adjustment offered or
denial of an adjustment is not acceptable, the customer can appeal the decision to the Board of
Aldermen.



& Ashland Police Department

601 E Broadway - Ashland, MO 63010 ~ www.ashlandmo.us ~ Gabe Edwards, Police Chief ~ Telephone: $73-657-9062

APD Monthly Report to the Board of Alderman

For the April 6", 2021 meeting

Vehicles and other police equipment
o We have taken delivery of all four new police vehicles, three 2021 Dodge Durango
“Pursuits,” and one 2020 AWD Dodge Charger “Pursuit” (the last new/unsold 2020 AWD
with a HEMI engine known to exist in Missouri).
o Police graphics applied to all new vehicles on 04-06-21
o Equipment from retired 2014 Dodge Charger will be installed into the 2020 Dodge
Charger immediately after police graphics are applied.
o Still waiting on equipment for the Durangos.
Personnel
o One of the two new officers has completed field training and is working solo patrol
o One of the two new officers is still in field training and is performing well.



